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Notice is hereby given that the 102nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of NKGSB Co-operative Bank Ltd., 

Mumbai, will be held on THURSDAY, THE 27TH JUNE, 2019, AT 4.30 P.M. AT INDIAN EDUCATION SOCIETY’S 

PRACHARYA B. N. VAIDYA SABHAGRAHA, HINDU COLONY, DADAR (E), MUMBAI – 400 014 to transact the 

following business :

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and Audited Balance 

Sheet as on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors thereon.

2. To approve appropriation of Net Profit and to declare dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors up to the date of the 103rd Annual General Meeting. 

4. Any other business that may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair.

May 31, 2019 By order of the Board    

Regd. Office   : Laxmi Sadan,              

361, V.P. Road,         

Girgaum,      CHINTAMANI  NADKARNI 

Mumbai 400 004                  Managing Director

NOTE : *  If there is no quorum at the appointed time, the meeting shall stand adjourned to 5 p.m. on the same day at the 

same venue, at which time the members present shall constitute the quorum in terms of Bye-Law No. 32(iii) 

and the agenda of the meeting shall then be transacted.

* As per Rule No.18 of the Multi-State Co-op. Societies Rules, 2002, the Minutes of the 101st Annual General 

Meeting held on 4th August, 2018 were duly approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on          

31st  August, 2018 and copies thereof were made available at the branches and at the Registered Office.

* Copies of the Annual Report are made available at the Registered Office as well as at all branches of the Bank 

and on the website of the Bank (www.nkgsb-bank.com/annual-reports.php).

APPEAL TO MEMBERS

• If any member desires to have any information in connection with the accounts, he is requested to intimate to the 

Managing Director at the Registered Office, AT LEAST SIX DAYS in advance of the Annual General Meeting so that 

the necessary explanation or information can be easily made available.

• In case of members who have Bank accounts in NKGSB Co-operative Bank Ltd., the dividend amount will be 

credited to their accounts, if written instructions are given to us to that effect. Members are requested to fill in the 

enclosed ‘Go Green Mandate’ (also available on our website www.nkgsb-bank.com/pdf/Go_Green_Mandate.pdf) 

and submit the same to the nearest branch or to the Shares Department of the Bank at Registered Office at Girgaum. 

• Members are requested to avail nomination facility by submitting Nomination form duly completed to the Shares 

Department.

• Members may please note that in terms of Bye-Law No. 54(iv), ‘any dividend remaining undrawn for three years after 

having been declared shall be forfeited and shall be carried to the Reserve Fund of the Bank.’ Members are therefore 

requested to collect the unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2015-16 on or before 30.06.2019, failing which the 

same will be forfeited and credited to Statutory Reserve Fund.

NOTICE
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Dear Shareholders, 

It gives me great pleasure to welcome you all to the NKGSB Bank’s 102nd 
Annual General Meeting. 

The year 2018-19 had mixed signals on the growth of the Banking sector. 
While some banks chose to grow its business, many banks due to high 
delinquency growth, treaded cautiously. Your Bank also treaded its business 
on these lines.

The Bank chose the path of consolidation in business and human resources, 
with more emphasis on cleansing its balance sheet during the year 2018-19. 
Your Bank as at the end of March 31, 2019 has satisfied all the criteria as 
prescribed. I am sure that this approach of us shall surely help the Bank 
become more vibrant and increase the shareholders’ value in the years to 
come.

The business mix of the Bank grew by 5% to 12,852 Cr. in 2018-19 as against 12,256 Cr. in the previous year. 

Deposits of the Bank grew by 9% and reached a level of  7,601 Cr. as at the end of March 31, 2019, as against       

6,945 Cr. in the corresponding period of the previous year. Advances witnessed a marginal fall by 1% and 

reached a level of  5,251 Cr. as against  5,311 Cr. in the previous year. CD ratio stood at 69%. Bank made a Net 

profit of  40.26 Cr. The Capital Adequacy ratio of the Bank stood at 12.90%. The Provision Coverage Ratio of the 

Bank has increased to 56% as at the end of March, 2019 as compared to 40% in the previous year.

The Bank’s Gross NPA and Net NPA stood at 3.82% of the Advances and 1.72% of the Net Advances respectively, 
as at the end of March, 2019.

As a part of increasing ancillary business, the Bank has Corporate Tie up for Insurance besides undertaking 
Mutual Fund Business. For Mutual Fund business, the Bank has tied up with SBI Funds Management Co. Ltd. in 
addition to our existing tie-up with other mutual funds. The Bank was awarded the second position in the category 
of “Top performing Co-operative Bank in new Demat accounts” at the NSDL Star Performer awards 2018.

As all of you are aware of, your Bank takes pride amongst few Indian Banks who has surpassed the 100 year 
milestone on its own original identity. Bank continues to be a Trusted Brand in terms of Integrity, Trust and fair 
practices, all built up assiduously over a period of more than 100 years.

With the banking landscape set to change manifold, NKGSB with its technological up-gradation aims to be at the 
forefront of digital revolution. The Bank’s Core Banking Solution “Finacle” and Mobile banking Platforms are 
epitome of our evolution to the digital world. During the year, the Bank has introduced enhanced versions of the 
Mobile Banking and Internet Banking Applications that offer a common view and interface on both the channels. 
The Internet Banking Application has been offered to the Corporate Customers also. The Bank is also a participant 
in the payment initiative of NPCI viz; Unified Payments Interface (UPI). The same allows the customer to pay or 
collect money to/from any other customer registered on the UPI platform using the BHIM or any other payment 
platform. The Bank will continue up-scaling its technological and security platform for the benefit of its valued 
customers in tune with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India.

The human resources of the Bank continue to be the source of strength and backbone for the functioning of the 
Bank. During the year 2018-19, the Bank took several steps in up-skilling the human resources by way of external 
and internal trainings. As part of motivational exercise, the Bank also resorted to Promotions of Staff in various 
grades. As part of Micro Management, better operational efficiency and efficient customer service; Bank has 
created Clusters of branches.

T T

T

T

T T

T
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Besides other recruitments, the Bank also strengthened the Top Management by recruiting qualified and 
experienced personnel for the posts of Chief Financial Officer and General Manager - Credit. In order to enhance 
the managerial efficiency, effectiveness of the organisation and to protect the Interests of the Bank, the Bank also 
recruited an experienced and seasoned officer to take care of Vigilance Department. 

The Bank conducted various training programs during the year on topics such as Brand Building, Branch 
Operations, E-Channels, Soft skills development, Forex services, Credit Appraisal, Credit Risk, Recovery 
Procedures, Tax matters, Legal Aspects, etc. The Bank shall continue such initiatives to enhance the skills of its 
employees. The Bank has set its sight on a minimum 24 hours training in a year for all its employees. The Bank has 
also implemented the e-learning module to train all its employees.

The Bank is offering through its International Banking Division various foreign exchange facilities including pre & 
post shipment finance, Import finance, etc. to its various clients in USD, EUR and GBP currencies.  During 2018-
19, your Bank made tie up with Yes Bank for issuance of Travel Cards in 10 currencies to clients visiting various 
tourist destinations. The Bank also added a new money changer Unimoni Financial Services Ltd. in our basket for 
offering foreign currencies at competitive rates to clients visiting overseas through our Branch network. The Bank 
established correspondence relationship in two more countries i.e. Malaysia and Thailand, thus increasing our 
reach for advising Letters of Credit on behalf of Importer clients. The Bank has been taking continuous steps for 
improvement in forex business by quoting competitive rates and effective speedy service. In 2019-20, the Bank 
aims at establishing correspondence relationship in more countries and to deal in more currencies to serve our 
customers in a better way.

The Bank continues to adopt all Corporate Governance Principles in a professional and co-ordinated manner. All 
the Committees of the Board and the Board meet every month and wherever required decisions and guidance are 
given to the Management. I am happy to say that your Bank by having and deliberating in the Committee Meetings 
of the Board every month, has set a high standard of Corporate Governance.

I am also happy to share that Shri Chintamani Nadkarni, Managing Director of the Bank, who is also the Chairman 
of the IBA Committee on Urban Co-operative Banks is also appointed as an Alternate Chairman of the IBA 
Standing Committee on Agriculture & Allied Activities for the year 2018-19 and has also been inducted as a 
member of the Finance Committee of IBA for the year 2018-19.

The bronze statue of the Bank’s Founder, Sheth Shri Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni was installed at the Head 
Office, Girgaum and unveiled on the occasion of the Bank’s 101st Foundation Day. 

Your Bank has set its sight to achieve  25000 Cr. business in the next three years and as a first step has targeted 

for 16000 Cr. by the end of March, 2020. The Bank has centralised its wholesale Credit disbursals and this shall 

facilitate to reduce TAT and increase Credit in the coming months. Further, as I had already listed out, your Bank 
has taken a lot of proactive steps, to enable achieving targets and increasing stakeholder value in the coming 
years.

I am sure with the blessings and wishes of you all, the Bank shall continue to stride forward, achieve many more 
milestones.

I am grateful for the continuous support of the members, customers, employees, regulators and other partners. I 
am also grateful to my colleagues in the Board for their valuable time, contribution and support, during the year.

I request you all to approve the Directors’ Report, Audited Profit and loss account and the Balance Sheet.

T

T

Mumbai Kishore Kulkarni 
May 31, 2019         Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 102nd Annual Report along with the audited accounts for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2019.

MACROECONOMIC LANDSCAPE-GLOBAL FACTORS

i) During the year 2018-19, the global economic activity had been slowing down including some major emerging market 
economies (EMEs). 

ii) The monetary policy stances of the US Fed and central banks in other major advanced economies (AEs) have turned 
dovish.

iii) Crude oil prices have risen on production cuts by OPEC and Russia as well as disruption in supplies due to US 
sanctions on exports from Venezuela.

iv) Gold prices weakened on expectations of positive outcomes of the China-US trade deal. 

v) Inflation continued to remain low in major AEs and many key EMEs. 

vi) Bonds yields in most EMEs have been falling in tandem with those in AEs and on the improving inflation outlook.

vii) Currency markets witnessed volatility due to apprehensions on economic growth in many countries and Global Trade 
war tensions.

INDIAN ECONOMY

i) India’s GDP was at 6.8% for the FY 2018-19. There has been considerable deceleration in growth in the second half 
of 2018-19, with second half estimated to have grown by 6.6% to 6.7% as against 7.3%- 7.4% growth in the first half of 
2018-19.

ii) India has retained its position as the third largest start up base in the world with over 4,750 technology start-ups.

iii) India's foreign exchange reserves were US$ 414.88 billion in the week up to March 29, 2019, according to data from 
the RBI.

iv) While the All India General CPI Inflation stood at 2.86% in March, 2019, Core Inflation stood at 5.02%.

BANKING & ECONOMIC SCENARIO – KEY DEVELOPMENTS

Key developments/proposals in India’s banking industry include:

i) The Government of India has launched the India Post Payments Bank (IPPB) from September, 2018.

ii) India’s digital lending stood at US$ 75 billion in FY 2018 and is estimated to reach US$ 1 trillion by FY 2023 driven by 
the five-fold increase in the digital disbursements.

iii) Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has decided to set up Public Credit Registry (PCR) an extensive database of credit 
information which is accessible to all stakeholders. 

iv) The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (Amendment) Ordinance, 2017 Bill has been passed to strengthen the banking 
sector.

v) Bank of Baroda (BoB) became the second largest public sector undertaking (PSU) bank after merging Dena Bank 
and Vijaya Bank into itself as part of the first three-way amalgamation.

vi) The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has asked the Indian Banks’ Association (IBA) to look at new external benchmarks 
for floating rate loans.

vii) In August, 2018, National Payments Corp. of India launched Unified Payments Interface (UPI) 2.0 with added 
features for users, allowing UPI users to link their overdraft account to existing UPI accounts in addition to existing 
saving account holders.

viii) The RBI has issued draft guidelines for constituting Board of Management (BoM) for Primary (Urban) Co-operative 
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Banks (UCBs), in addition to the Board of Directors (BoD) with a view to strengthening governance in UCBs.

ix) RBI is considering a proposal for setting up an Umbrella Organisation (UO) from the NAFCUB for extending liquidity 
and capital support to its member UCBs, to set up IT infrastructure for shared use of members to enable them to widen 
their range of services at a relatively lower cost.

x) RBI has issued a Scheme for voluntary transition of eligible UCBs with a minimum net worth of T 50 crore and a CRAR 
of 9% and above into Small Finance Banks.

KEY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS:

The performance of the Bank at a glance is as follows:

Particulars 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Deposits 7,095 6,945 7,601

% growth 18 (2) 9

Advances 5,128 5,311 5,251

% growth 13 4 (1)

Business-mix 12,223 12,256 12,852

% growth 16 0.27 5

Operating Profit 102.61 103.60 92.53

Net Profit 46.55 48.53 40.26

Gross NPA 243.98 317.16 200.80

% of Advances 4.76 5.97 3.82

Net NPA 147.91 189.86 88.58

% of Net Advances 2.94 3.66 1.72

 (` in Cr.)
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• Deposits of the Bank grew by 9% and reached T 7,601 Cr. as at March 31, 2019, as against T6,945 Cr. in the previous 
year.

• Advances withnessed a marginal fall by 1% and reached T 5,251 Cr., as against T 5,311 Cr. in the previous year. 

• The business mix grew by 5% to T12,852 Cr. in 2018-19 as against T12,256 Cr. in the previous year. 

• CD ratio stood at 69% compared to 76% last year.

• Owned funds stood at T 776 Cr.

• NII as at end March, 2019 stood at 2.82%

• Operating Profit for FY 2018-19 was T92.53 Cr. and Net Profit after tax and provisions was T40.26 Cr.

Operating Profit Net Profit

120

100

80

60

40

20

0

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

(T in Cr.)

102.61 103.60
92.53

46.55 48.53
40.26

09

APPROPRIATIONS

The following appropriations are recommended for the financial year 2018-19, for your approval under item No. 2 of the 
Notice:

       
A) Statutory Appropriations :- 2017-18 2018-19

1 Statutory Reserve Fund 1,213 1,006

2 Contingency Reserve Fund 485 403

3 Education Fund 49 40

B) Other Appropriations :-

1 Building Fund 100 166

2 Bad and Doubtful Debt Fund 1,400 1,200

3 Donation Fund 5 5

4 Investment Fluctuation Reserve - 107

5 Dividend @ 10% p.a. (pro-rata) on Equity Shares (P.Y. @ 10% p.a.) 835 850

6 Dividend @ 8.50% p.a. (pro-rata) on Perpetual Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares (PNCPS) (P.Y. @ 8.50% p.a.) 94 125

7 Ex-Gratia to Staff 800 835

8 Staff Welfare Fund 75 90

9 Members' Welfare Fund 18 20

10 Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961 414 203

NET PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 1 1

TOTAL 5,489 5,051

(T in Lacs)



CAPITAL TO RISK WEIGHT ASSET RATIO (CRAR)

The Bank’s Capital to Risk Weight Asset Ratio (CRAR) stood at 12.90% as at the end of March 31, 2019 which is above the 
minimum required benchmark of 12%.

The Bank raised T 13.52 Cr. through PNCPS, as a part of Capital augmentation as at March 31, 2019.

The Bank has also launched an issue of Long Term Subordinated Deposits of T 16 Cr. on April 2, 2019 and raised 
T 15.48 Cr. under the issue till date. 

The Bank shall continue to explore the possibility of raising capital funds through various modes so as to strengthen the 
CRAR.

DIVIDEND 

With a view to maintain a balance between rewarding the shareholders and building up Statutory and other reserves, the 
Board of Directors has recommended a dividend @ 10.00 % p.a. on equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Dividend on Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) has been recommended at 8.50 % p.a. similar to that 
of the previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Equity Share Capital:

The paid up capital of the Bank as on March 31, 2019 stood at T 84.65 Cr. as compared to T 85.05 Cr. in the previous year. 
The number of shareholders stood at 55,071 members as compared to 54,547 members in the previous year.

As a measure of purification of the shareholders’ data and also to encourage the go green initiative (e-communication), 
SMS and emails were sent to the shareholders whose mobile Nos./email ids were registered with the Bank requesting them 
to update their KYC documents / bank details.

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital (PNCPS):

As on March 31, 2019, the Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Share Capital (PNCPS) stood at T 13.52 Cr. compared to 
T 12.55 Cr. in the previous year.

RESOURCE MOBILISATION

         

The aggregate deposits of Scheduled Banks in India (ASB deposits) stood at T 129 lac crore as on March 29, 2019, 
registering a growth of 9.99% .

The Bank’s deposits stood at T 7,601 Cr. as on March 31, 2019 registering a growth of 9% i.e. T 656 Cr. over previous year, 
almost in line with ASB growth. CASA constitutes around 23% of deposits at T 1,756 Cr. 

The deposit mix is detailed hereunder:         

                                                                                     

The Bank revised the interest rates on deposits in May, 2018 and in April, 2019, in line with the market rates.

(T in Cr.)
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Type As on 31.03.2018 % As on 31.03.2019 %

Savings 1,389 20.00 1,400 18.42

Current 338 4.87 356 4.68

Fixed 5,218 75.13 5,845 76.90

Total 6,945 100.00 7,601 100.00



RESOURCE DEPLOYMENT

The Bank Credit of Scheduled Banks in India (ASB) stood at  100.54 lac crore as on March 29, 2019, registering a growth 
of 13.24%.

The Bank’s advances stood at T 5,251 Cr. as on March 31, 2019 witnessing a marginal decline of 1% over the previous 
year. 

Credit Deposit (CD) ratio stood at 69%.

During the year under review, the Bank sold advances worth T 128.31 Cr. to the Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs). 
Post the sale of T 128.31 Cr. to ARCs, the Advances stood at T 5,251 Cr. as on March 31, 2019. 

Net Interest Income (NII) stood at 2.82% as at the end of March, 2019 as compared to 3.30% as at the end of March, 2018. 

Though there has been growth in All Scheduled Banks’ Credit to a major extent, it happened only in the second half of the 
financial year. Further in our area of operation, many banks’ credit growth has been sluggish due to various factors including 
controlling of delinquency. Our Bank was also focusing more on recovery of NPAs and ensuring quality assets.

The composition of Credit portfolio is detailed here under:

Sector 2017-18 % 2018-19 %

Retail 1,923 36.20 1,712 32.60

Wholesale 2,505 47.16 2,437 46.41

Others 883 16.64 1,102 20.99

Total 5,311 100.00 5,251 100.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank has adopted the CRISIL RAM Model, a globally used credit rating tool for the Credit Risk Assessment which 
standardizes credit assessment, facilitates maintaining the portfolio credit risk at an acceptable level, maintains quality 
of assets, minimizing non-performing assets and covers many additional parameters which provides an overall 
comprehensive score for the borrower. Under CRISIL, the Bank covers all wholesale portfolios above T 1.00 Cr. and 
most of the retail advances. Besides ensuring quality of credit, RAM also ensures that proper care and assessment is 
done while sanctioning loan to the borrower.

ASSET QUALITY 

The Bank’s Gross NPA and Net NPA stood at T 200.80 Cr. i.e. 3.82% of the Advances and T 88.58 Cr. i.e. 1.72% of the 
Net Advances respectively, as at the end of March, 2019.

During the year, Advances worth T 128.31 Cr. were sold to the Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs).

The banking sector is on the course to recovery, and trends indicate further improvement in banks’ quality of assets in 
the coming year.

Most of the advances of the Bank are secured by collateral properties and appropriate legal steps for recovery including 
one time settlements, are taken wherever required on an ongoing basis. Monitoring mechanisms are in place to 
minimize slippages of accounts into non- performing.

The Bank has also adopted the ‘Willful Defaulters Policy’ and necessary action against the defaulting borrowers is being 
taken under the Policy.

To improve the Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR), requisite provisions by way of Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve 
(BDDR) and Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund (BDDF) have been made towards NPAs in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by the RBI. The Bank has created additional BDDF of T 12 Cr. during F.Y. 2018-19 (P.Y. T 14 Cr.) by way of 

T

(T in Cr.)
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appropriation out of net profit. The PCR of the Bank stood at 56% as at March 31, 2019 as against 40% as at March 31, 
2018.

INVESTMENTS

The debt markets have seen a large movement in both the directions over the course of the year. Rising yields, 
expectations of slower global growth, wavering outlook on oil prices, US pressure on other countries, elevation in 
inflation have been the key drivers for negative returns dampening investor demands and widening spreads. 

The ten year gilts range was between 7.13% and 8.18% for the F.Y. 2018-19. It closed the year @ 7.48%.

The Bank’s Treasury Department manages the government securities portfolio duly complying with regulatory 
requirements. The department focuses on optimising yield on the overall portfolio. It deals in placements in money 
market instruments, Inter-bank deposits and NCDs. The department also initiates trading positions in the fixed income 
market. 

Despite many negatives in the market during the year, income from treasury related activities has increased due to 
diligent trading approach and effective deployment of surplus funds. 

Aggregate Investment of the Bank increased by 41.79% from T 1,812.91 Cr. in F.Y. 2017-18 to T 2,570.53 Cr. in F.Y. 
2018-19. Profit from Treasury related activities increased by 267.29% from T 4.28 Cr. in F.Y. 2017-18 to T 15.72 Cr. in 
F.Y. 2018-19. 

TECHNOLOGY

During the year, the Bank has introduced enhanced versions of the Mobile Banking and Internet Banking Applications 
that offer a common view and interface on both the channels. The Internet Banking Application is offered to the 
Corporate Customers also.

Customers are now able to get their statement of account by email and manage their debit card limits and 
activate/deactivate the same in real time.

The new versions also allow users to connect to payment gateways to make payments of their utility bills, mobile bills, 
etc. in real time or in a scheduled mode. Payments have been facilitated on the RTGS, NEFT, IMPS channels as per the 
choice and convenience of the customer.

The Bank is also a participant in the payment initiative of NPCI viz; Unified Payments Interface (UPI). The same allows 
the customer to pay or collect money to/from any other customer registered on the UPI platform using the BHIM or any 
other payment platform.

The Bank will continue up scaling its technological and security platform for the benefit of its valued customers in tune 
with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India.

INITIATIVES OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Business Development Department of the Bank focuses on enhancement of business in all areas and evaluation of 
Branch performance. 

To achieve a higher operational efficiency and rendering better customer services, the Bank has created Clusters of the 
branches. 

To achieve overall business targets, the Bank has always focussed on selected segments viz; CASA Deposit, Retail Credit, 
and Ancillary Products viz; Insurance, Demat and Mutual Funds.    

The Bank is already into Insurance Business by way of Corporate Agency and has also ventured into an Open Architecture, 
as approved by IRDAI. The Bank has tie up with major mutual funds. During the year 2018-19, the Bank has tied up with SBI 
Funds Management Co. Due to these multiple tie-ups, the customers get a diversified choice of financial products.
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In addition to these, the Bank has also tied-up with LIC and Bajaj Allianz for the Pradhan Mantri Yojana Schemes. Further, to 
secure our credit exposure, the Bank has introduced Group Credit Protection Plan (GCPP) through its tie-up partners viz; 
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd. and Religare Health Insurance Co. Ltd.

The Bank is also in the process of launching the BSE StarMF platform for Online Mutual Fund investment and e-Insurance 
facility. 

The Bank has also subscribed for the “Speed-e” facility with NSDL. This facility enables our customers to sell their shares 
online through the SPEED-e website (https://eservices.nsdl.com). This platform also provides our customers with the 
facility to check their balances and transactions on real time basis through Internet-based Demat Account Statement 
(IDEAS) and the customers can also monitor the status of execution of instructions.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS

The Bank’s International Banking Division (IBD) offers various foreign exchange facilities including pre & post shipment 
finance (in rupee and foreign currency) and Import finance to its various clients in USD, EUR and GBP currencies.  
Merchant Forex turnover of the Bank has increased from T 520 Cr. in 2017-18 to T 579 Cr. in 2018-19. During the year 
under review, the Bank has tied-up with Yes Bank for issuance of Travel Cards in ten currencies, to its clients visiting various 
tourist destinations. 

The Bank has tied up with various Authorised Money changers including FRR Forex Pvt. Ltd., Thomas Cook Ltd., 
EBIXCASH World Money Ltd. (earlier known as Centrum Direct Ltd.), Pheroze Framroze and Cox & Kings. Recently, the 
Bank has tied up with Unimoni Financial Services Ltd. for offering foreign currencies at competitive rates to our clients 
visiting overseas through our Branch network.

IBD has established correspondence relationship in two more countries viz; Malaysia and Thailand, thus increasing our 
reach for advising Letters of Credit on behalf of Importer clients. 

The Bank has successfully implemented the SWIFT version 7.2.50 (mandatory requirement of SWIFT) within the timeline 
and SWIFT controls are now in place as per RBI guidelines. 

The Bank has adopted a Document Management Software viz; TRADE ZONE enabling upload of documents at the 
Branches and smooth processing of Forex transactions. With this, the requests for remittances or issue of Letters of Credit 
can now be viewed on a single platform by multiple users, thereby reducing the burden on email network and also improving 
TAT for forex services.

Training to Staff on various products including Non Resident deposits, Travel Cards, Currencies, Remittances and Letters 
of credit, SWIFT codes, etc. was undertaken to enhance their working knowledge in handling Foreign exchange 
transactions. 

In the year 2019-20, the IBD aims at establishing correspondence relationship in more countries and deal in more 
currencies to serve our customers in a  better way.

RECOGNITION

At the NSDL Star Performer awards 2018, the Bank was awarded the second position in the “Top performing Co-operative 
Bank in new Demat accounts opened” category.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank conducts its business ethically in a transparent manner, ensuring the best Corporate Governance practices to 
protect the interests of the stakeholders. The Bank ensures compliances with regulatory requirement and is also 
responsive and pro-active to growing customer needs.

The Bank is managed by a team of qualified and experienced Directors with expertise in their chosen fields, bringing in 
valuable experience and ensuring sound corporate governance mechanism to achieve objectives that are in the interest of 
the stakeholders and the organization. 
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Details of various meetings of Board and Committees, held during the year are given below:

AUDIT & INSPECTION

The Bank has in place a system for internal and concurrent audit. All branches are covered under concurrent audit 
(monthly/quarterly) as also put under internal audit. The Accounts, Audit & Investment Committee of the Board gives 
directions, oversees the total audit function of the Bank, follows-up on the statutory / concurrent audit of the Bank and the 
inspection carried out by regulators. The Committee comprises of Directors with Professional qualification and expertise in 
Finance, Audit, Taxation and Accounting fields. 

During the year, RBI carried out its on-site inspection of the Bank with respect to financial position as on March 31, 2018.

VIGILANCE

With the technological advancement in the Banking Industry, the volume of transactions; business as also the reach of 
customers to execute the transactions, has reached to an unparallel level. Banking industry is today facing a bigger 
challenge with new types of frauds and is trying to cope with better management practices and better Vigilance 
Administration. 

In order to enhance Managerial efficiency, effectiveness of the organization and to protect the interest of the Bank, as a 
forward looking step, the Bank has recently set-up a Vigilance Department. The scope of the Vigilance Department 
includes implementation of new systems for early warning and detection of frauds through surprise checks, Off-site 
surveillance, etc. Prevention of frauds will be the main focus of the department for which Vigilance Awareness will be 
created amongst the employees through meetings, emails and conducting special classes.

The Bank shall endeavour to improve its efficiency at operating level by creating awareness about its systems & 
procedures to render prompt customer service without lapses.

REAPPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

In the 101st Annual General Meeting held on August 4, 2018, M/s. A. P. Sanzgiri & Co., Chartered Accountants were 
appointed as Statutory Auditors. They have consented their willingness to be reappointed. Being eligible, the Board of 
Directors recommends their reappointment up to the date of next Annual General Meeting.

No. of
Meetings

No. of Directors
in the Board/ 
Committee

Average 
Attendance

Board 16 12 10

Advances, Credit Monitoring & Recovery Committee  40 7 5

Accounts, Audit & Investment Committee    

Audit 13 6 5

Investment 12 7 5

Executive Committee    

Execution 8 5 5

Development & HR 12 6 5

Digitisation 17 6 5

Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring of 4 5 5

Large Value Frauds
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BRANCH EXPANSION

During the year, the Bank has set up two new branches, one at Waluj in Aurangabad and another at Maninagar in 
Ahmedabad. Currently, the Bank has a network of 109 branches spread across five states of Maharashtra, Goa, 
Karnataka, Gujarat and Madhya Pradesh.

HUMAN RESOURCE

Human Resource Department develops the key competencies of employees to perform their current and future roles, 
through learning activities and facilitates in maintaining an environment conducive to total participation, quality leadership, 
personal and organizational growth.

Learning and development, a subset of HR, aims to improve group and individual performance by increasing and honing 
skills and knowledge. To achieve this, the Bank started the ‘Saksham’ movement inviting enthusiast employees as 
volunteers to take the initiative for knowledge up-scaling and performing specified tasks. 

The Bank has set its sight on a minimum 24 hours training in a year for all its employees. Various training programs were 
conducted during the year on topics such as Brand Building, Branch Operations, E-Channels, Soft skills development, 
Forex services, Credit Appraisal, Recovery Procedures, Tax matters, Legal Aspects, etc. The Bank will continue such 
initiatives to enhance the skillset of its employees. 

The Bank also encourages its employees to continually upgrade their knowledge in different fields. During the year under 
review, 28 employees took initiative in upgrading their academic qualifications. 6 employees attained their post graduation / 
professional qualifications and as many as 22 employees completed various courses conducted by the Indian Institute of 
Bankers. 

The Directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the commitment of the employees.  

Shri Shrinivasraghavan S. joined the Bank as a Chief Financial Officer on November 19, 2018. 

Shri Rohit  Bhujbal joined the Bank as General Manager – Credit  on December 19, 2018.

Shri Anil Muley has joined the Bank as a Chief Vigilance Officer on January 25, 2019.

Shri Anand Dhareshwar joined the Bank as Asst. General Manager- Trade Finance on September 10, 2018.

BRAND BUILDING

Brand building is an important activity in the overall business development. It is the communication and creation of 
customer value and helps to build a loyal customer base. 

The Bank continues to make consistent efforts for promotion and sustainability of its brand through various initiatives. 

A complete revamp of the Bank’s website was done during the year under review, making it more customer friendly, with a 
greater thrust on the use of technology for banking operations. The website provides information and updates on the 
various products and services of the Bank.

To stay connected with our customers, the Bank has undertaken various brand building and recall exercises through media 
viz; Television, Press, Bus Shelter, Display during Ganeshotsav & Navratri festival, etc.

The Bank was associated with the following events as a part of brand building initiative:

i) “Loksatta-Vishleshan” and “Loksatta – Durga Awards, 2018” organized by Loksatta, a leading Marathi 
newspaper.

ii) “Dr. Ramani Goa Marathon” which created a good brand awareness in the state of Goa. 

An SME Customers’ Meet was organized in Aurangabad on April 16, 2019 to reach out new SME customers aiming to cater 
to the credit needs of manufacturing sector-based SMEs from the industries like auto ancillaries, foundries & other light 
engineering segment, pharmaceuticals, chemicals and food processing. The event was also graced by the Bank’s 
Chairman and other Directors. The event was a grand success with the presence of eminent dignitaries from the SME 
sector in Aurangabad.
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SHRI SHETH SHANTARAM MANGESH KULKARNI MEMORIAL LECTURE

The 20th Sheth Shantaram Memorial lecture was organized on October 30, 2018 at Pracharya B.N. Vaidya Sabhagraha, 
IES School, Dadar. The lecture was addressed by Smt. Ashwini Bhide, IAS (MD, Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation) on the 
topic “The Changing Face of Transportation in Mumbai (With reference to Mumbai Metro 3).”

At the event, Annual Awards for 2017-18 were also given to the branches for excelling in their performance.

The Sheth Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni Memorial Lecture Series, which started in 1997, has witnessed presence of 
various eminent speakers with expertise in their fields. 

The Bank, as a mark of respect to its Founder member-Sheth Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni and to celebrate the legacy in 
the Co-operative Banking sector, shall continue to conduct the series of “Sheth Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni Memorial 
Lecture.”

A bronze statue of the Bank’s Founder was installed at the Head Office, Girgaum and unveiled by the Bank’s Chairman, Shri 
Kishore Kulkarni and Vice Chairman, Shri Sunil Gaitonde on September 26, 2018, being the Bank’s 101st Foundation Day.

DEPOSIT INSURANCE

The Bank has been regularly paying premium to Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation (DICGC) covering 
Bank’s deposits. The Bank paid a premium of T 819.72 Lacs during the year.

GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL UNIT

To address prompt redressal of customer grievances and for efficient customer service, the Bank has in place a Grievance 
Redressal Unit (GRU) headed by the Nodal Officer of the Bank, presently, Shri Girish Hoskote, Deputy General Manager. 
The GRU addresses the complaints received through various sources including Banking Ombudsman and resolves them 
promptly. The facility for registering online complaints is available on the Grievance Redressal page of the Bank’s website 
(www.nkgsb-bank.com/grievance-redressal.php).

MEMBERS’ WELFARE

• The Bank has been felicitating the meritorious wards of the members encouraging them by recognizing their 
achievements in academics & sports. This year, 27 students were felicitated through the Members’ welfare fund.

• In all, 19 members have availed the benefits of the scheme for reimbursement of hospitalization expenses. 

• During the year, 69 members availed the facility for reimbursement of medical check-up.

MANAGEMENT

Shri Chintamani Nadkarni, Managing Director of the Bank was elected as the Chairman of the IBA Committee on 
Urban Co-operative Banks for the year 2017-18, until the conclusion of the AGM of IBA to be held in 2019. He is also 
appointed as an Alternate Chairman of the IBA Standing Committee on Agriculture & Allied Activities for the year 2018-
19 and also had been inducted as a member of the Finance Committee of IBA for the year 2018-19.

OBITUARY

The Board of Directors express their profound grief at the sad demise of Shri Mohan Jadhav, former employee of the Bank.

The Board pays homage to the departed souls of shareholders who have passed away during the year.
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To,

The Members,

NKGSB Co-op. Bank Ltd.,

Mumbai.

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of NKGSB Co-op. Bank Ltd. (hereinafter referred to 
stas ‘the Bank’) as at 31  March 2019, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2019, the statement of 

Profit and Loss Account, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. The returns of Head Office and it's departments audited by 

us and returns of all 109 branches certified by the Concurrent Auditors/Internal Auditors are consolidated in these 

Financial Statements. Of the total number of branches, 106 are under monthly/quarterly Concurrent Audit. 1 

branch have been newly opened in the last quarter of 2018 and 2 branches have been newly opened in the first and 

second quarter of 2019 and hence are not covered under Concurrent Audit. These 3 branches account for 0.106% 

of total deposits, 0.076% of total advances & Rs. 145.67 lacs as loss before tax. As informed by the management, 

the Bank has not received any specific guidelines from the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies with respect 

to selection of branches to be covered under audit. During the course of our audit, we performed select relevant 

procedures at 21 branches. Key operations of the Bank are automated. With the key applications largely integrated 

to the core banking systems it does not require it's branches to submit any financial returns. Accordingly, our audit 

is carried out centrally at the Head Office and Central Processing Units, based on the necessary records and data 

required for the purposes of the audit being made available to us and further the matter of percentages of 

advances, deposits, interest income and of interest expenses is not applicable to the Bank.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts 

read together with the Notes, give the information required thereon by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as 

Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and rules made thereunder, in the manner so required, for the Urban 

Co-operative Banks, guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India and the Central Registrar of Co-operative 

Societies, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India:
sta. In the case of the Balance Sheet, of state of affairs of the Bank as at 31  March 2019;

b. In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c. In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in 

accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provision of the Act and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion.

st

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

4. The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that 

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, and 

provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India 

and the guidelines issued by the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, the Multi-State Co-operative 

Societies Act, 2002, the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002 from time to time. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Acts for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 

the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

5. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material, if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
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among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged 

with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters 

communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the Key Audit 

Matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

6. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in Forms “A” and “B” respectively of the 

Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the    

Multi-State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002.

7. As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found to be satisfactory;

b. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been 

received from the branches/offices;

c. As required by Section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we further report that the transactions of 

the Bank which came to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank;

d. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report, are in the agreement with the 

books of account and the returns;

e. The reports on the accounts of the branches/offices certified by the branch auditors have been forwarded to 

us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this Report;

f. The accounting standards adopted by the Bank are consistent with those laid down by accounting principles 

generally accepted in India so far as applicable to Banks;

g. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, we have not noticed any material 

impropriety or irregularity in the expenditure or in the realisation of money due to the bank.

8. As required by the Rule 27 (3) of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002, we report on the matters 

specified in clauses (a) to (f) of the said Rule to the extent applicable to the Bank.

a. During the course of our audit, we have generally not come across transactions which appear to be contrary 

to the provisions of the Act, the Rules or the Bye-Laws of the Bank.

b. During the course of our audit, we have not come across material and significant transactions which appear 

to be contrary to the guidelines issued by RBI. Since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received 

subsidy from National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development, our comments regarding transactions 

contrary to the guidelines issued by the said Bank are not called for.

c. Following monies due to the Bank appear to be doubtful of recovery against which a provision of  8,530.37 

Lacs is made in the accounts. Advances categorised as doubtful and loss assets as per Prudential Norms are 

considered as doubtful of recovery:-

`
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d. As per the information provided to us and to the best of our knowledge, following credit facilities have been 

sanctioned by the Bank to the members of the Board or their relatives:

e. We have generally not come across any violations of guidelines, instructions etc. issued by the RBI. Since the 

Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received subsidy from National Bank for Agriculture and Rural 

Development, our comments regarding violations of guidelines issued by the said Bank are not called for.

f. To the best of our knowledge, no other matters have been specified by the Central Registrar, which require 

reporting under this Rule.

For and on behalf of

A.P. Sanzgiri & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.:116293W

Abhijit P. Sanzgiri

Partner 

Membership No.: 43230

Place: Mumbai
stDate: 31  May, 2019

Category Outstanding on 31.03.2019

(  In Lacs)

Doubtful Assets 14,826.15

Loss Assets 929.24

`

Particulars Amount Security Value Overdues if any 

outstanding if any (  In Lacs)

(  In Lacs) (  In Lacs)

Fund Based Nil Nil Nil

Non Fund Based Nil Nil Nil

`

` `
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As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19

Balance Sheet

     CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

I. SHARE CAPITAL 1 9,817  9,760 

II. RESERVE FUND AND  OTHER RESERVES 2 67,777  66,151 

III. PRINCIPAL/SUBSIDIARY STATE PARTNERSHIP FUND ACCOUNTS - -

IV. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 3 7,60,088  6,94,531 

V. BORROWINGS 4 15,970  15,970 

VI. BILLS FOR COLLECTION BEING BILLS RECEIVABLE 9,574  8,014

 (As per Contra)

VII. OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE ON LOANS AND ADVANCES 10,102  15,081 

(As per Contra)

VIII. INTEREST PAYABLE 1,539  1,985 

IX. OTHER LIABILITIES 5 8,198  6,558 

X. SETTLEMENT CREDIT ACCOUNT (As per contra) 100  99 

(Refer Schedule 16, Note no. 4)

XI. PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT 1  1 

GRAND  TOTAL 8,83,166  8,18,150 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 14  29,595  34,781 

Significant Accounting Policies 15

Notes to Accounts 16

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No.: 116293W
sd/-

ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI
PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

stMumbai, 31  May, 2019
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As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19

st
as at 31  March, 2019

I. CASH 6 35,543  37,041 

II. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 7 18,109  23,655 

III. INVESTMENTS OUT OF THE PRINCIPAL/SUB. STATE PARTNERSHIP FUND - -

IV. MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE (LAF, REVERSE REPO & TREPS) 8 33,489  10,294 

V. INVESTMENTS 9 2,08,561  1,50,170 

VI. ADVANCES 10 5,25,052  5,31,129 

VII. BILLS RECEIVABLE BEING BILLS FOR COLLECTION 9,574  8,014 
(As per Contra)

VIII. INTEREST RECEIVABLE
a) On Investments & Earmarked Funds 11 3,921  3,441 
b) On Staff Loans 927  815 

c) On Loans and Advances (As per Contra) 10,102  15,081 

IX. FIXED ASSETS 12 27,301  28,519 

X. OTHER ASSETS 13 9,063  8,168 

XI. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET) (Refer Schedule 16, Note no. 19) 1,424  1,724 

XII. SETTLEMENT DEBIT ACCOUNT (As per contra) 100  99 
(Refer Schedule 16, Note no. 4)

GRAND  TOTAL 8,83,166  8,18,150

PROPERTY AND ASSETS Schedule

KISHORE KULKARNI 
Chairman
SUNIL GAITONDE
Vice - Chairman
CHINTAMANI NADKARNI
Managing Director
SRINIVASARAGHAVAN S.
Chief  Financial Officer
SAMIR REGE
Asst. General Manager (Finance)

ANIL NADKARNI 
Director
NAGESH PINGE 
Director
SUJATA RANGNEKAR
Director

st Mumbai, 31 May, 2019

ALKA DIWADKAR
Director
NAGESH FOVKAR
Director
RAMESH KASBEKAR
Director
KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR
Director

23

(` in Lacs)



Profit and Loss Account

EXPENDITURE

Interest on Deposits  47,265  45,091 
Interest on Borrowings  1,482  1,482 

Staff Salaries, Allowances and Benefits  8,143  7,941 

Rent, Rates, Taxes, Service Charges, Insurance and Electricity  2,623  2,496 

Legal and Professional Charges  224  239 

Postage, Telegrams and Telephone Charges  243  325 
Travelling, Lodging and Conveyance  73  91 

Audit Fees  118  118 
Repairs and Maintenance  828  761 
Depreciation on Fixed Assets  1,512  1,555 

Depreciation on Shifting of Securities  15 - 

Amortisation on HTM Securities  491  495 

Printing and Stationery  89  101 

Advertisement  214  232 

Bad Debts Written Off  3,799  1,167 

Amortisation of Software  798  887 

Sundry Expenses                          1,911  2,236 

OPERATING PROFIT (c/f)  9,253  10,360

 79,081  75,577
Provisions and Contingencies:
A) Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve  3,137  2,890 
B) Contingent Reserve against Standard Assets  -    114 

C) Provision for Dimunition in fair value of asset  2 -

D) Interest Transferred to Leave Encashment Fund  89  80 

E) Provision for IDR  13  - 
F) Provision for Election Fund  8  7 

 Profit Before Tax (c/f)  6,004  7,269 

 9,253  10,360
Provision for Taxes:

Income Tax  1,678  2,782 

Deferred Tax  300  (366)

Net Profit for the year  4,026  4,853 

 Total  6,004  7,269

(` in Lacs)

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No.: 116293W
sd/-

ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI
PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

stMumbai, 31  May, 2019
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st
for the year ended 31  March, 2019

 Interest and Discount 

 a) Interest on Advances  54,919  56,390 

 b) Income from Investments  14,197  12,415 

 c) Interest on Deposits with Banks  1,064  1,685 

 Commission, Exchange & Brokerage  3,045  3,075 

 Bad Debts Provision Reversed  3,799  1,167 

 Bad Debts of Earlier year Written off now recovered  4  6 

 Profit on Sale of Investments (including Mutual Funds)  1,572  428 
 Profit on Forex Transactions  123  130 

 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  50  2 
 Rent on Safe Deposit Lockers  250  241 

 Miscellaneous Income  58  38 

 79,081  75,577 

OPERATING PROFIT (b/f)  9,253  10,360 

 9,253  10,360 

 Profit Before Tax (b/f)  6,004  7,269 

 Total  6,004  7,269

INCOME
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Year Ended
31-Mar-18

Year Ended
31-Mar-19

Profit and Loss Appropriation Account

Appropriations  subject to Approval in AGM

A) Statutory Appropriations :-

1 Statutory Reserve Fund (25% of Net Profit)  1,006  1,213 

2 Contingency Reserve Fund (10% of Net Profit)  403  485 
3 Education Fund ( 1 % of Net Profit)  40  49 

B) Other Appropriations :-

1 Building Fund  166  100 
2 Bad & Doubtful Debts Fund  1,200  1,400 
3 Reserve for Donations  5  5 
4 Investment Fluctuation Reserve  107  -   

5 Proposed Dividend @  10.00% p.a. (pro-rata) on Equity Shares  850  835 
6 Proposed Dividend  @ 8.50 % p.a. (pro-rata) on PNCPS  125  94 
7 Ex-Gratia to Staff  835  800 
8 Staff Welfare  fund  90  75 
9 Members' Welfare Fund  20  18 
10 Special Reserve U/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961  203  414 

 5,050  5,488 

PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET  1  1 

TOTAL  5,051  5,489

EXPENDITURE

(` in Lacs)

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No.: 116293W

sd/-
ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI

PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

stMumbai, 31  May, 2019
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Year Ended
31-Mar-18

Year Ended
31-Mar-19

st
for the year ended 31  March, 2019

INCOME

Profit of last year (b/f)  1  2 
Net Profit for the year  4,026  4,853 

Transfer from Revaluation Reserve *  569  570 

Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve written back  400  -   

Excess Appropriation of previous year written back:-
a) Ex-gratia  54  13 
b) Dividend and Education Fund  1  51 

TOTAL  5,051  5,489

(` in Lacs)

* As per Revised AS-10 w.e.f. 01.04.2017
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As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19

Schedules

Schedule - 1

Share Capital

Authorised Share  Capital 20,000 20,000
20,00,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each

I  Issued Subscribed and Paid up Equity Capital 
8,46,46,802 shares of Rs. 10/- each
(P.Y. 8,50,45,737 shares) of which :-
Individuals 6,513 6,463
Co-op Institutions - -
Others 1,952 2,042

TOTAL 8,465 8,505

II Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) Capital

1,35,21,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each (P.Y. 1,25,54,000 shares)

 Issued Subscribed and Paid up Preference Share Capital 1,352 1,255

TOTAL CAPITAL (I+II) 9,817 9,760

Schedule - 2
RESERVE FUND AND  OTHER RESERVES 

I Reserves as per Multi-State Co-op. Soc. Act

(i) Statutory Reserve Fund 13,996 12,971

(ii) Contingency Reserve Fund 5,076 4,673
(iii) Building Fund 8,702 8,536
(iv) Donation Fund 13 9

II Reserves as per RBI guidelines
(i) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 1,233 1,525
(ii) Contingent Reserve against Standard Assets 2,189 2,189

(iii) Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve 9,043 9,706

(iv) Provision  for Restructured Advances 50 48

(v) General Reserve 35 -

III Other Funds as per Bye-Laws

(i) Election Fund 23 15

(ii) Members' Welfare Fund 238 222

IV Others
(i) Special Reserve U/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961 2,441 2,238
(ii) Capital Reserve 68 4
(iii) Revaluation Reserve 18,475 19,108
(iv) Deferred Tax Reserve 292 292

(v) Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund 2,178 3,025

(vi) ARC Reserve Account 2,047 -
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Schedules

V Funds for the benefit of staff
 (i) Staff Welfare Fund 429 418

 (ii) Staff Leave Encashment Fund 1,249 1,172

TOTAL RESERVES (I+II+III+IV+V) 67,777 66,151

Schedule - 3
Deposits 

I Term Deposits
(i) Individuals & Others 5,03,280 4,74,922
(ii) Societies 81,165 46,937

II Saving Deposits

(i) Individuals & Others 1,33,054 1,32,208
(ii) Societies 6,946 6,665

III Current Deposits
(i) Individuals & Others 32,861 31,044

(ii) Societies 652 293

IV Matured Deposits 2,130 2,462

Total ( I+II+III+IV) 7,60,088 6,94,531

(Includes amt of Rs. 11,952 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 9,960 Lacs)
collateralised towards LCs / Guarantees. Also an amount of
Rs. 49,419 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 40,478 Lacs) is lien marked against
overdraft / loan against FDs.)

Schedule-4
Borrowings 

I Long Term Subordinated Deposits
Series I 
Tenure of 5 years @ 10.00% p.a. 2,283 2,283

Tenure of 7 years @ 10.25% p.a. 2,717 2,717

II Long Term Subordinated Deposits
Series II
Tenure of 5 years @ 9.00% p.a. 1,392 1,392

Tenure of 7 years @ 9.25% p.a. 4,178 4,178

As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19
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III Long Term Subordinated Deposits
Series III

Tenure of 5 years @ 8.50% p.a. 2,854 2,854
Tenure of 7 years @ 8.75% p.a. 2,546 2,546

Total (I+II+III) 15,970 15,970

Schedule-5

Other Liabilities
 (i) Payorder Issued / Draft Payable 3,008 1,350

 (ii) Proposed Dividend (Equity  + PNCPS) 975 929

 (iii) Ex-gratia for Staff 835 800
 (iv) T.D.S. on F.D.R. Interest 217 398
 (v) Interest received in Advance on Bill Discounting 791 479

 (vi) Unclaimed Dividend 128 88
 (vii) Sundry Deposits 664 605

 (viii) Others 1,580 1,909

Total ( i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii+viii) 8,198 6,558

Schedule -6
Cash

(i) Cash in Hand 2,908 3,458

(ii) Balances with Reserve Bank of India 32,624 33,567

(iii) Balances with State Bank of India, State Co-operative Banks  & 11 16
District Co-operative Banks 

Total (i+ii+iii) 35,543 37,041

Schedule -7
Balances with other Banks

I Current Deposits with  Banks 3,106 2,828

II Fixed Deposits with Banks :-

(a) Reserve Fund Investment 2,750 12,960
(b) Investment against Earmarked Funds 701 1,932
(c) Other Fixed Deposit Receipts 11,552 5,935

Total (a+b+c) 15,003 20,827

(Other Fixed Deposit Receipts includes Rs. 1,014.85 Lacs placed
 with other Banks as margin for Credit Line (P.Y. Rs.899.53 Lacs))

Total (I+II) 18,109 23,655

As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19
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Schedule-8

MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE (LAF, REVERSE REPO & TREPS)
(i) Money at Call & Short Notice  -   10,294
(ii) Reverse REPO 18,500  -   
(iii) TREPS 14,989  -   

Total (i+ii+iii) 33,489 10,294

Schedule-9
Investments

(i) Government Securities 1,80,712 1,46,098

(ii) Government Securities (earmarked for Reserve Fund Investment) 15,945 4,047
(iii) Bonds & NCDs 2,000  -   
(iv) Other Investments 25 25
(v) Security Receipts (ARC) 9,879  -   

Total (i+ii+iii+iv+v) 2,08,561 1,50,170

Schedule-10
Advances

I Short Term Loans, Cash Credit, Bills Discounted and Purchased 1,92,017 1,67,557
of which secured against:
(i) Govt. and Other Approved Securities 91 32
(ii) Other Tangible Securities 1,91,443 1,67,148
(iii) Unsecured - Personal /Surety Loans 483 377
(Amount due from Individuals - Rs.19,304.26 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 17,426.62 Lacs),
amount overdue Rs. 20,309.27 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 20,582.92 Lacs),
considered  Bad & Doubtful of recovery Rs. 5,265.60  Lacs
(P.Y. Rs. 5,773.16 Lacs) fully provided as per RBI Norms)

II Medium Term Loans 27,394 34,584
of which secured against:

(i) Govt. and Other Approved Securities 1 10
(ii) Other Tangible Securities 26,614 33,583

(iii) Unsecured - Personal /Surety Loans 779 991
(Amount due from Individuals - Rs. 11,784.39 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 15,129.17 Lacs),
 amount overdue Rs. 2,033.88 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 4,010.16 Lacs),
considered  Bad & Doubtful of recovery Rs. 911.04 Lacs 
(P.Y. Rs. 1,785.08 Lacs) fully provided as per RBI Norms)

As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19
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III Long Term Loans 3,05,641 3,28,988
of which secured against:
(i) Govt. and Other Approved Securities 1,354 1,293
(ii) Other Tangible Securities 3,01,051 3,23,757
(iii) Unsecured - Personal /Surety Loans 3,236 3,938
(Amount due from Individuals - Rs.1,97,047.29 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 2,16,463.70 Lacs),
amount overdue Rs. 9,446.84 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 11,756.14  Lacs),
considered  Bad & Doubtful of recovery Rs. 9,578.74 Lacs 
(P.Y. Rs. 12,446.82 Lacs) fully provided as per RBI Norms)

Total (I+II+III) 5,25,052 5,31,129

Schedule-11

Interest Receivable

(i) On Investments 3,908 3,386
(ii) On Investments against Earmarked Funds 13 55

Total (i+ii) 3,921 3,441

Schedule-12
Fixed Assets

I Premises (Including Land)

Opening Balance as on April, 1 32,183 31,535
Add  :  Additions during the year (Includes Leasehold Improvements) 65 649
Less : Sales during the year (104) (1)

32,144 32,183

Less : Depreciation upto last year 5,730 4,862
                        Depreciation for the current year 857 869
                        Depreciation  on assets  sold (10) (1)

6,577 5,730

Sub-Total 25,567 26,453

II Furniture and Fixtures

Original Cost  as on April, 1 3,205 3,158
Add  :  Additions during the year 74 89

 Less : Sales during the year (5) (42)
3,274 3,205

 Less : Depreciation upto last year 1,884 1,644

                         Depreciation for the current year 275 278
                         Depreciation  on assets  sold (5) (38)

2,154 1,884

Sub-Total 1,120 1,321

As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19
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III Other Fixed Assets
Original Cost  as on April, 1 3,894 3,781
Add  : Additions during the year 256 175
Less : Sales during the year (165) (62)

3,985 3,894

Less : Depreciation upto last year 3,149 2,797
                        Depreciation for the current year 381 407
                        Depreciation  on assets  sold (159) (55)

3,371 3,149

Sub-Total 614 745

Total Fixed Assets (I+II+III) 27,301 28,519

Schedule-13
Other Assets

(i) Premium paid on Investment (Net of Amortisation) 3,510 3,989
(ii) Earmarked Fund against Staff Leave Encashment Fund 1,087 10
(iii) Lease & Security Deposits 851 832
(iv) Intangible Assets (Software) 694 1,384
(v) CCIL & CBLO Segment Cash Margins 215 208
(vi) Advance Income Tax (Net) 1,521 390
(vii) Prepaid Expenses 87 102
(viii) Others 1,098 1,253

Total  (i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii+viii) 9,063 8,168

Schedule -14
Contingent Liabilities

(i) Forward Contracts Purchase 1,092 4,795

(ii) Forward Contracts Sale 1,693 5,470
(iii) Guarantees * 19,184 15,384
(iv) Letter of Credit ** 5,880 8,167
(v) DEAF Account 1,023 837

(vi) Income Tax Demand 664 96
(vii) Service Tax Demand 38  -   
(viii) Others 21 32

Total  (i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii+viii) 29,595 34,781

* These amounts are collaterised by Fixed Deposits, Counter Guarantees and
 Secured Charges of Rs. 11,952.22 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 9,960.23 Lacs)
** These amounts includes Expired LCs of Rs. 155.88 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 311.36 Lacs)/
 Guarantees of  Rs. 2,670.76  Lacs, (P.Y. Rs. 1,457.92 Lacs) which have not been cancelled
 being Original LCs / Govt. Guarantees / BGs not being received back.

As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19
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CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account  4,026  4,853 

Add: Previous year excess provision written back  1,025  635 

Add: Opening balance as per Profit and Loss Account  1  2 

Profit Available for Appropriations  5,051  5,489 

Less : Appropriations  5,050  5,488 

Net Profit as per Balance Sheet  1  1 

Add:

Depreciation on Assets  943  985 

Deferred Tax  300  (366)

Current Tax  1,678  2,782 

Bad Debts Written Off  3,799  1,167 

Premium on Securities Amortised  491  495 

Amortisation of Software  798 8,010  887 5,949

       

Add:

Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Assets  (50)  (50)  (2)  (2)

Less :

BDDR written back  (3,799)  (3,799)  (1,167)  (1,167)

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/ Decrease in Investments  (46,494)  13,585 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other  Investments  (14,164)  (3,487)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Advances  6,078  (18,378)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Interest receivable and OIR  4,388  (3,337)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Assets  (3,754)  (3,016)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Funds  3,214  6,474 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Deposits  65,558  (14,958)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Interest Payable  (447)  (3,385)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities  (3,426) 10,953  2,555 (23,948)

   

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A)  15,115  (19,166)

stCash Flow For The Year Ended 31  March, 2019

2017-182018-19Particulars
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stCash Flow For The Year Ended 31  March, 2019

2017-182018-19Particulars

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Regn. No.: 116293W
sd/-
ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI
PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

thMumbai, 31  May, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (395)  (914)

Payment for Software  (109)  (152)

Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets  86  13 

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities (B)  (418)  (1,054)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Equity Share Capital  (37)  (2)

Increase in Preference Share Capital  95  351 

Increase in Borrowings  -    (2)

Dividend Paid  (871)  (1,048)

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C)  (813)  (701)

Net increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  13,885  (20,921)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  59,385  80,306 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  73,270  59,385 

 13,885  (20,921)

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand & Balances with Notified Banks  35,543  37,041 

Balances with Other Banks  4,237  12,050 

Money at Call & Short Notice (LAF, Reverse REPO & TREPS)  33,489  10,294 

 73,270  59,385
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Schedule 15 & 16:-
Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts forming part of Financial Statements for the year 

stended 31  March 2019.

 I] 1. BACKGROUND:
NKGSB Co-op Bank Ltd. (Bank) was incorporated under Maharashtra Co-operative Societies Act in 1917.  
Subsequently in 1996, the same was brought under Multi State Co-operative Societies Act 2002, upon opening 
branches outside the State of Maharashtra. Bank is designated as a Scheduled Bank under Schedule II of the 
R.B.I Act. Presently, Bank has 109 branches as at 31.03.2019 spread over in the States of Maharashtra, Goa, 
Karnataka, Gujarat and Madhya Pradesh. In current year, two branches were opened. The Bank provides various 
Banking products which cater to the needs of both corporate and retail customers.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION:
The accompanying Financial Statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention 
as a going concern on accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and comply with the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles, statutory requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, and 
the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, circulars and guidelines issued by the ‘Reserve Bank of India’ 
(RBI) from time to time, the applicable ‘Accounting Standards’ (AS) issued by the ‘Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India’ (ICAI) and the current practices prevailing amongst the Co-operative Banks in India. 
The Accounting Policies adopted in the current year are consistent with those of previous year except otherwise 
stated.

3. USE OF ESTIMATES:
The presentation of Financial Statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements. Actual 
results could differ from those estimated. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the 
Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable. Any revisions to the accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively in the current and future periods.

II] Schedule 15:-
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: -

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION:
The Financial Statements are drawn up keeping in mind the historical cost and going concern concept and in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices prevailing in the Co-operative Banks in 
India unless otherwise stated.

2. MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE:
Amount invested in TREPS (Tri-party Repo (Dealing) System) and Reverse Repo are shown under the head 
‘Money at Call & Short Notice’.

3. INVESTMENTS :
For presentation of the Balance Sheet, Investments are classified under the following categories as required under 
RBI guidelines – Government Securities, Bonds/ NCDs, Shares in Co-operative Institutions/Other Institutions, 
Security Receipts (ARC), Mutual Funds  and Other Investments.

3.1 Classification
In accordance with guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank classifies its investment portfolio into the following 
three categories:

 i) ‘Held to Maturity’ – Securities acquired by the Bank with the intention to hold till maturity. 
ii) ‘Held for Trading’ – Securities acquired by the Bank with the intention to trade.
iii) ‘Available for Sale’ – Securities which do not fall within the above two categories are classified as ‘Available for 

Sale’.

3.2 Valuation and Accounting of Investments
a) Investments in HTM category are valued at acquisition cost unless it is more than the face value in which case 

the premium (if any) paid on the investments under this category is shown under “Other Assets” and is 
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amortised over the period remaining to maturity. For any security acquired at discount to the face value, the 
discount earned on maturity/sale is recognised only at the time of redemption/sale.

b) Investments under AFS and HFT categories are valued scrip-wise at lower of Book Value and Market Value 
and depreciation/appreciation is aggregated for each classification. Net depreciation, if any, is provided for, 
while net appreciation, if any, is ignored. Net depreciation if any, for the year under these categories is charged 
to the Profit and Loss Account and shown under "Other Liabilities" as “Contingent Provisions against 
Depreciation in Investment”.

c) Treasury Bills under all categories/classifications are valued at carrying cost.
d) Units of Mutual Fund are valued at lower of Cost or Net Asset Value. 
e) Shares of Co-operative Institutions/Other Institutions are valued at cost unless there is a diminution in the 

value thereof in which case the diminution is fully provided for.
f) Market Value of Debt Securities, Debentures & Bonds are determined in terms of Yield To Maturity (YTM) 

method indicated by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).
g) Profit on redemption of Investments under “HTM” category is included in profit on sale of Investments and the 

said amount is transferred to Investment Fluctuation Reserve by way of appropriation.
h) Bank follows the settlement date method of accounting for Government of India and State Government 

securities in accordance with RBI guidelines.
i) Broken period Interest, Brokerage, Commission paid if any, in respect of investments purchased is treated as 

an item of expenditure under the Profit and Loss Account.
j) Investments in Security Receipts (SR) initially issued by Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs) are valued 

at cost till expiry of 6 months from acquisition date. Subsequently, these will be valued at NAV declared by the 
ARCs from time to time but not later than 6 months from the Balance Sheet Date. 
Depreciation if any, arising from the valuation thereon will be recognised in the Profit and Loss account. 
Appreciation, if any will be ignored.

k) Accounting for REPO/Reverse REPO transactions (Including transactions under the Liquidit 
Adjustment Facility (LAF) with the RBI).
The securities sold and purchased under REPO/Reverse REPO are accounted as Collateralised Borrowings 
and Lending transactions. Securities are transferred as in the case of normal outright sale/purchase 
transactions and such movements of securities are reflected using REPO/Reverse REPO Accounts and 
contra entries. The above entries are reversed on the maturity date. Costs and revenue are accounted as 
interest expenditure/income, as the case may be. Balance in REPO account is classified under Borrowing and 
balance in Reverse REPO account is classified under Money at Call & Short Notice.
The accounting and disclosure of LAF is in accordance with the norms stipulated by RBI vide its Circular No. 

thFMRD.DIRD. 10/14.03.002/2015-16 dated 19  May, 2016 and FMOD.MAOG. No.116/01.01.001/2016-17 
thdated 10  November, 2016.

3.3 Transfer between categories 
Reclassification of investments from one category to another, is done in accordance with RBI guidelines and 
any such transfer is accounted for at the acquisition cost/book value/market value, whichever is lower, as at the 
date of transfer. Depreciation, if any, on such transfer is fully provided for.

4. ADVANCES:
a) The classification of advances into Standard, Sub Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets as well as 

provisioning on Standard Advances, Restructured Advances and Non Performing Advances is arrived at in 
accordance with the Income Recognition, Assets Classification and Provisioning Norms prescribed by the 
RBI for Primary UCBs.

b) The Bank also makes provision for diminution in fair value of Restructured Advances as per norms issued 
by RBI.

c) Advances against security of Bank’s own Fixed Deposits, National Saving Certificates, Life Insurance 
Corporation Policies, Indira Vikas Patra, Kisan Vikas Patra are considered as Performing Assets in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI.

d) In arriving at the provisioning, for determining the value of securities, the value as per the latest valuation 
reports, wherever obtained, of the assets mortgaged is considered. In case of stock the value as per last 
stock statement submitted by the borrowers is taken into consideration and in case of fixed assets, the 
depreciated value of the assets is generally considered.

e) Amount recovered against debts write off in earlier years are recognised in Profit and Loss Account.
f) Premium paid for purchase of Priority Sector Lending Certificate is debited to Profit and Loss Account.
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5. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION:
a) Fixed Assets, other than those that have been revalued, are carried at historical cost less depreciation 

accumulated thereon. Cost includes incidental stamp duty, registration charges and civil work in case of 
ownership premises, and in case of other fixed assets, amounts incurred to put the asset in a working 
condition.

b) Depreciation is provided on a Straight Line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset at the following 
rates: 

c) Assets purchased during the year are depreciated for the entire year except for those at Branches opened 
during the year, which are depreciated pro-rata on completed month basis from the date of commissioning 
of the respective branch.

d) Depreciation on vehicles is charged pro-rata on completed month basis.
e) Assets disposed off during the year are depreciated up to the quarter before the date of  disposal. 
f) Books are capitalised and depreciated to Re.1/- per book in the year of purchase.
g) Depreciation on the revalued portion of assets is included in Depreciation expenses and the same amount 

is directly reversed from revaluation reserves through the Profit and Loss Appropriation Account. The same 
is in conformity with revised AS-10 issued by the ICAI and applicable to non corporate assesses from 
01.04.2017. 

h) Fixed Assets which have been fully depreciated but are still in use, are carried in the books at Re.1/-.
i) Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000/- is charged to Profit and Loss Account in the year of purchase.
j) During the current year, Bank has changed it's rate for depreciation in respect of UPS/Batteries from 15% to 

33.33%. Replacement of UPS/Batteries are also capitalised in the books. AMC & Recharges are expensed 
off to Profit and Loss Account.

k) Chairs / Tables are capitalised under “Furniture & Fixtures” irrespective of value of individual Chair thereof.

6. RESERVE FUND AND OTHER RESERVES:
I) As per the requirement of Multi–State Co-operative Societies  Act, 2002,

a) The Statutory Reserve Fund is bifurcated into 2 categories viz.:
i) Statutory Reserve Fund (Comprising 25% of Net Profit).
ii) Contingency Reserve Fund (Comprising 10% of Net Profit).

b) Co-operative Education Fund maintained by National Co-operative Union of India (Comprising 1% of Net 
Profit).

II) Membership entrance fees & Dividend payable remaining unclaimed for over 3 years are taken directly to the 
Statutory Reserve Fund.

III) Interest accruing on investments against certain earmarked funds viz. Members' Welfare Fund and Staff 
Welfare Fund is credited initially to Profit and Loss Account and thereafter transferred to the respective funds 
through Appropriation of Profits for the year.

7. CASH FLOW STATEMENT (AS-3):
The Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby Profit before Tax is adjusted for effects of 
transactions of non-cash nature, deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.  The cash flows 
from Operating, Investing and Financing activities of the Bank are segregated based on available information.

8. REVENUE RECOGNITION (AS-9):
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Items of income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis except the 
following items:-

Assets % of Depreciation

Land and Building (Including  Tenancy Rights )                   2.50%

Furniture and Fixture                  10.00%

Office Machinery (including Air Conditioner, Fire Extinguisher)                 15.00%

Glow Sign Board & Vehicles                20.00%

Computer Hardware & Software & UPS/ Batteries               33.33%

Leasehold Improvements Equally over the primary period of lease
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a) Interest income on Non Performing Advances is recognised on cash basis in accordance with guidelines 
issued by RBI.

b) Commission, Exchange, Brokerage and Locker Rent are recognised as income upfront on receipt.
c) Income from investments is accounted for on accrual basis except dividend on shares of Corporates and 

Mutual Funds, if any, which is accounted for on cash basis.
d) Income from distribution of Insurance Products is accrued on the basis of business booked.

9. OTHER EXPENSES:
Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis except as stated below: 
a) Interest on Matured Fixed Deposits (MFD) where no renewal instructions are obtained from customers is 

provided at prevailing Savings Bank Deposit Rate.
b) Ex-gratia given, if any, is accounted as an appropriation at the rates decided by the Management in accordance 

with provisions of Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002. 

10. OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE:
Overdue Interest Reserve (OIR) represents unrecovered interest on Non Performing Advances, which is 
correspondingly shown under Interest Receivable as per RBI directives.

11.  RECOVERY FROM NPAs:
Recovery from Non Performing Advances is firstly appropriated as under:-
a) In case of Loss Assets towards Principal.
b) In case of Substandard Assets towards Interest.
c) In case of Doubtful Assets, where there are chances of recovery, appropriation is firstly towards Interest, in 

other cases towards Principal.

12. STAMP DUTY AND REGISTRATION CHARGES OF LEASED PREMISES:
Stamp Duty and Registration Charges in respect of Leased Premises is charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

13. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (AS-11): 
a) Transactions denominated in foreign currency are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. Monetary foreign currency Assets and Liabilities reflected in the Balance Sheet on the date are 
translated at the rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI). The Profit / Loss due 
to revaluation are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

b) The outstanding spot and forward contracts are revalued at the applicable rates notified by FEDAI. The 
resulting Profit / Loss is accounted in Profit and Loss Account as per FEDAI / RBI guidelines.

c) Premium/discount in respect of foreign exchange hedge contracts is amortised over the period of contract. 
d) Contingent Liabilities on account of foreign exchange contracts, guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and 

other obligations denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed at closing rates of exchange notified by 
FEDAI.

14. ACCOUNTING FOR AMALGAMATION (AS-14):
Accounting for Amalgamation in case of Amalgamated Banks with the Bank is carried out as per the amalgamation 
orders passed by RBI and Other Appropriate Statutory Authorities.

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (AS-15):
a) Gratuity

Retirement Benefit in the form of Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The Bank has a Gratuity Trust for its 
Employee under the Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of 
India (LIC). During the year, certain amounts have been additionally invested with HDFC Standard Life 
Insurance Company. Gratuity is provided for on the basis of Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent 
Actuary as at the year end, using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with AS-15 on Employee 
Benefit as issued by ICAI.

b) Compensated Absences (Leave Encashment)
Employee Leave Benefits in the nature of Privilege Leave is a defined benefit plan. Employees are not entitled 
to encashment of Sick Leave. Casual Leave is encashed at the Calendar year end and not carried forward. 
Privilege Leave which is en-cashable is provided for on the basis of Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent 
Actuary as at the year end using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with the guidelines issued 
under AS-15 on Employee Benefits as issued by ICAI.
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c) Provident Fund Contribution
Retirement Benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution plan and contributions made to the 
Commissioner of Provident Fund at rates prescribed in the Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions 
Act, 1952 are accounted for on accrual basis.

d) Superannuation Contribution
Contribution towards superannuation scheme of LIC is accounted for on accrual basis as a defined contribution 
plan.

16. SEGMENT REPORTING (AS-17):
The Business Segments is considered as primary reporting format and the Bank does not have any geographical 
segment. In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Bank has adopted following Business Segments:
a) Treasury includes all Investment Portfolio, Profit/Loss on sale of investments (Bonds and Government 

Securities) money market operations and foreign exchange transactions including commission based Trade 
Finance transactions. The expenses of this segment consist of interest expenses on funds borrowed from 
external / internal sources and depreciation/ amortisation of premium on Held to Maturity investments. Bank 
has Internal Parameters in place which are reviewed at half yearly intervals to calculate the internal fund 
transfer pricing.

b) Other Banking operations include funded Trade Finance transactions and all other operations not covered 
under Treasury Operations. It primarily comprises of Loans and Advances to wholesale and retail customers 
and other Banking services to such customers. The revenue consists of interest earned on loans and 
advances, fee income on various services and foreign exchange products to customers. Funded Trade 
Finance transactions are classified under Other Banking operations. 

17. OPERATING LEASES (AS-19):
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are 
classified as Operating Leases. Operating Lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss 
Account during the year as per the lease agreement.

18. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS (AS 20)):
Basic Earning per Share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit for the period by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares are calculated on 
monthly basis.

19. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AS-21):
Since Bank does not have any subsidiary companies/ Co- operative Societies, the Accounting Standard 21 (AS-21) 
regarding Consolidated Financial Statements is not applicable to the Bank.

20. DEPOSITS FOR SERVICES:  
Security Deposits for Electricity and Telephone services are written off equally over a period of 5 financial years.

21. INCOME TAX (AS-22):
a) Income Tax expense comprises of Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current Tax is provided for and Deferred Tax 

is accounted for in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Rules framed 
thereunder.

b) Provision for Current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year arrived at as per the 
provision of Income Tax Law and applicable Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) issued by 
Central Board of Direct Tax (CBDT).

c) Deferred Tax is recognised on account of timing differences between the book profits and the taxable profits. 
The tax effect of timing differences between the book profits and taxable profits measured using the tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Balance Sheet date are reflected through 
Deferred Tax Asset (DTA)/Deferred Tax Liability (DTL). DTA is recognised only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such DTA can be 
realised.

22. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS (AS-24):
Principles of recognition and measurements as set out in the Accounting Standards are considered for the purpose of 
deciding as to when and how to recognise and measure the changes in assets and liabilities and the revenue, 
expenses, gain, losses and cash flow relating to a discontinuing operations. There were no discontinuing operations 
as defined in the standard which need to be separately disclosed.
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23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (AS-26):
Amortisation of Software is calculated on Cost of Purchase as per agreement value plus all incidental & connected 
expenses related to the implementation and is depreciated from date of commercial usage over a period of 36 
months.

24. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (AS-28):
The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an assets may be impaired and 
provides for impairment loss, if any, in the Profit and Loss Account.

25. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS (AS-29):
a) The Bank makes provisions when it has a present obligation as a result of past event(s), where it is probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit to settle the obligation will be required and a reliable 
estimate can be made of such an obligation.

b) Contingent assets are not recognised in the Financial Statements.
c) Contingent liabilities of the Bank are in respect of guarantees, acceptances and letters of credit with customers 

under approved limits and the liability thereon is dependent upon terms of contractual obligations, devolvement 
and raising of demand by the concerned parties. These amounts are partly collateralised by 
margins/guarantees/secured charges.  A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible 
obligation, arising from a past event(s), the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Bank or any present obligation 
that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of 
obligation cannot be made.

26. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS:
This includes Cash in hand, Current Account Balances with Banks (as per Schedule-6 & Schedule-7(I)), Money at 
Call & Short Notice, LAF Reverse REPO & TREPS and highly liquid deposits maturing within 90 days amounting to 
Rs.1,131.38 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 9,222.44 Lacs).

III] Schedule 16:-
 NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS:-

1. Appropriation of Profit:
The Bank has made the following appropriations of profits for the year ended March 31, 2019 which are subject to 
shareholders approval in the Annual General Meeting proposed to be held on 27.06.2019.

 

Particulars Amount ( . in Lacs)`

Net Profit for F.Y. 2018-19 4,026
Add: Opening Balance in Profit and Loss Account 1
Add: Transfer from Revaluation Reserve, excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve,
excess appropriation from Education Fund, Dividend and Ex-gratia 1,024
Total Profit available for appropriation 5,051
Appropriations :-
Statutory Reserve Fund @25% of Net Profit 1,006
Contingency Reserve Fund @10% of Net Profit 403
Education Fund @1% of Net Profit 40
Building Fund 166
Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund 1,200
Donation Fund 5
Investment Fluctuation Reserve 107
Proposed Dividend on equity shares @10.00% p.a. (pro-rata) 850
Proposed Dividend on PNCPS @ 8.50% p.a. (pro-rata) 125
Ex-Gratia to Staff 835
Staff Welfare Fund 90
Members' Welfare Fund 20
Special Reserve U/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961 203
Balance carried forward 1
Total 5,051
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2. Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) :
 As per approval for Rs.5,000.00 Lacs granted by RBI vide its letter no. DCBS/MRO/BSS I/5911/12.07.163/ 2014-15 
dated February 25, 2015 and the Director to Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies vide it's letter no. R-
11017/6/2004 – L and M (Pt.) dated November 28, 2014, and Board Approval dated September 23, 2014, in the 
current year, the Bank has raised Rs. 96.70 Lacs by way of Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) 
(P.Y. Rs. 326.70 Lacs) for raising Tier I Capital thus, cumulatively amounting to Rs. 1,352.10 Lacs.
The terms and conditions regarding issue of Preference Shares remains same as detailed in Notes to Accounts of 
F.Y. 2016-17. The Rate of Dividend payable on PNCPS is declared in the Board Meeting and approved in the Annual 
General Meeting.

3. Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Deposits (LTD):
stThe LTD subscribed as at 31  March, 2019 is Rs. 15,970.25 Lacs which includes:-

a) Rs. 5,000.00 Lacs during F.Y. 2014-15 (Series-I)
b) Rs. 5,570.25 Lacs  during F.Y. 2015-16 (Series-II)
c) Rs. 5,400.00 Lacs during F.Y. 2016-17 (Series-III)
Repayment of all LTD Series will be done only at maturity with prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India.
The amount of LTD Series-I, Series-II and Series-III after applying relevant discounting factors is included in the 
Tier-II capital funds of the Bank for Capital Adequacy purpose as per RBI Guidelines.

4. Settlement Credit/Debit Account:
Settlement Debit and Credit Accounts (Contra) represents mirror impact of the cost of acquisition of Shree Shahu Co-
operative Bank Ltd. (SSCBL) and the entries pertaining to the Gains / Losses incurred post merger on Assets and 
Liabilities taken over.

5. During the year, the Bank has transferred to Investment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR) through Appropriation, an amount 
of Rs. 107 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. NIL), being profit on redemption of investments held in HTM category.

6. During the year, the Bank has written off an amount of Rs. 3,799.42 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 1,166.73 Lacs) towards bad debts 
which is identified by the Management as irrecoverable, approved by the Board of Directors and certified by the 
Statutory Auditors. The said amount has been fully provided for, and accordingly an equivalent amount has been 
written back from the Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve.

7. Claims receivable outstanding more than 1 year is provided in the accounts over a period of 3 years. The same is 
disclosed net of provisions thereon.

8. Commission and Exchange Income includes Income from Forex Business Rs. 564.79 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 503.57 Lacs). 
Exchange Profit is Rs. 122.98 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 129.87 Lacs).

9. The Bank has earned an Income of Rs. 136.21 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 195.79 Lacs) on account of Corporate Agency of 
Insurance Business with Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd., Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd., Max Life 
Insurance Co. Ltd., Religare Health Insurance Co. Ltd. and ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd. The same is 
disclosed under Commission, Exchange and Brokerage in the Profit and Loss Account.

10. The Bank has earned an Income of Rs. 21.58 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 39.67 Lacs) on account of Corporate Agency of Mutual 
Fund business with Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Ltd., Reliance Nippon Life Asset Management Ltd., HDFC Asset 
Management Co. Ltd and SBI Funds Management Pvt. Ltd. The same is disclosed under Commission, Exchange 
and Brokerage in the Profit and Loss Account.

11. Disclosure under AS  15 “Employee Benefits” Provident Fund:

Particulars
Provident Fund

 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Employment and Retirement Benefits

Post Employment Benefits

Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund
debited to Profit and Loss Account 622.47 607.87
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12 . Disclosure under AS-15 “Employee Benefits” - Gratuity:
The following table sets out the status of the Gratuity Plan as required under AS-15. Reconciliation of opening and 
closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Investments of Employees Gratuity Fund is held with LIC & HDFC Life. Necessary provisions is made in the Books of 
Accounts as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Sr.
No.

Gratuity Funded
Particulars

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

1 Principal actuarial assumptions as at the date of Balance Sheet:   

 Discount Rate 7.50% 7.60%

 Salary Escalation 4.00% 4.00%

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.50% 7.60%

2 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of present
value of obligation   

 Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 2,350.91 2,147.03

Interest cost 166.53 145.22

Current service cost 148.89 142.49

Benefit Paid (280.24) (141.21)

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligations 0.85 57.38

Present value of obligation as at end of the year 2,386.94 2,350.91 

3 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present
value of plan assets   

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 2,321.50 2,008.72

Expected return on plan assets 169.96 140.46

Contributions 114.82 323.71

Benefits paid (280.24) (141.21)

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on plan assets 12.14 (10.18)

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 2,338.18 2,321.50

 4 Amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet   

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 2,386.94 2,350.91

Present value of plan assets as at the end of the year 2,338.18 2,321.50

Funded Status 48.76 29.41

Net (Asset)/Liability in Balance Sheet 48.76 29.41

5 Expenses Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account   

Current service cost 148.89 142.49

Interest cost 166.53 145.22

Expected return on plan assets (169.96) (140.46)

Net  Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the year (11.28) 67.57

Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss Account 134.18 214.82
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13. Disclosure under AS-15 “Employee Benefits” - Leave Encashment:         

Discounting Rate is benchmarked to 10 years Government Security yield.

Investments of Employees Leave Encashment Fund is held in Fixed Deposits with Nationalised Banks/HDFC life.
Necessary provisions is made in the Books of Accounts as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Sr.
No.

Leave Encashment
Particulars

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

1 Principal actuarial assumptions as at the date of Balance Sheet:   

Discount Rate 7.50% 7.60%

Salary Escalation 4.00% 4.00%

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.50% 7.60%

2 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present
value of obligation

Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 1172.01 1153.96

Interest cost 89.07 78.85

Current service cost 68.95 53.71

Benefit paid (224.10) (137.60)

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligations 142.68 23.09

Present value of obligation as at end of the year 1248.61 1172.01

3 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present
value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 1273.00 1043.00

Expected return on plan assets 99.37 72.88

Contributions / (Utilization) - 287.98

Benefits paid (224.10) (137.60)

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on plan assets (10.10) 6.74

Redemption from the fund (33.17) -

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 1105.00 1,273.00

4 The amounts to be recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1248.61 1,172.01

Present value of plan assets as at the end of the year 1105.00 1,273.00

Funded Status 143.61 (100.99)

Net (Asset)/Liability in Balance Sheet 143.61 (100.99)

5 Expenses Recognised in the statement of Profit and
Loss Account

Current service cost 68.96 53.71

Interest cost 89.07 78.85

Expected return on plan assets (99.37) (72.88)

Net  Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the year 152.77 16.36

Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss Account 211.43 76.04
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14. Disclosure under AS-17 on ''Segment Reporting'': 
         Information about Primary Business Segments: 

  
                              

Notes: -
The Bank is engaged into two main business segments, (described in Policy Note 16).
The above segments are based on the currently identified segments taking into account the nature of services provided, 
the risks and returns, overall organisation structure of the Bank and the internal financial reporting system.
Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include the respective amounts directly identifiable to each of the 
segments and also amounts apportioned/allocated on a reasonable basis.  Segment liability excludes capital & reserve 
other than those specifically identifiable with a segment. Treasury result is net of transfer from IFR.

15. Disclosure under AS-18 on “Related Party Transactions”: 
The Bank is a Co-operative society under the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and there are no Related 
Parties requiring a disclosure under Accounting Standard 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) other than of the Key Management Personnel. 
There being only one Managing Director Shri. Chintamani V. Nadkarni for the financial year 2018-19, in terms of RBI 
circular dated March 29, 2003, he being a single party coming under the category, no further details thereon are 
required to be disclosed.

16. Disclosure under AS-19 “Leases”:
The Bank has entered into cancellable operating leases for the branches premises except for the initial lock in period. 
The disclosures under AS-19 on 'Leases' issued by ICAI are as follows:
a) Lease rental payments of Rs. 1,382.36 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 1,301.17 Lacs) have been recognised during the year in 

the Profit and Loss Account.
b) The lease agreements entered into pertain to use of premises at the branches. The lease agreements do not 

have any undue restrictive or onerous clauses other than those normally prevalent in similar agreements 
regarding use of assets, lease escalations, renewals and a restriction on sub-leases.
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For 2018-19
Particulars

For 2017-18

(R in Lacs)

Treasury
and  Forex

Other

Banking

Operations

Total Treasury
and Forex

Other

Banking

Operations

Total

Segment Revenue 17,476.98 61,604.08 79,081.06 15,464.98 60,103.06 75,568.03 

Segment Expenses 14,701.05 58,179.07 72,880.12 12,028.99 56,099.10 68,128.09 

Result 2,775.93 3,425.01 6,200.94 3,435.99 4,003.95  7,439.94 

Unallocated expenses 197.30 171.54 

Operating profit 6,003.64 7,268.40 

Income Tax 1,977.94 2,415.78 

Net Profit 4,025.70       4,852.62 

Other Information

Segment assets 2,56,410.67 6,03,828.49 8,60,239.16 1,89,528.70 6,05,227.64 7,94,756.34

Unallocated assets 22,927.34 23,393.85

Total assets 8,83,166.50 8,18,150.19

Segment liabilities 2,21,878.74 6,06,408.80 8,28,287.54 1,76,904.76  5,87,898.23 7,64,802.99 

Unallocated liabilities 19,781.90 19,764.44

Shareholders’ Funds 35,097.06 33,582.76

Total liabilities 8,83,166.50 8,18,150.19



Operating Lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS-19):

 
Lease agreements in respect of all leased premises are renewed as of date. Amount considered above is as per the final 
date of lease agreement. 

17. Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)  (Schedule 14)- Contingent Liability
As required under RBI circular DBOD no. DEAF.Cell.BC.101/30.01.002/2013-14 dated March 21, 2014, the Bank 
has transferred so far following funds to DEAF with RBI. The movement of the DEAF funds is as follows:

*Does not include an amount of Rs. 0.90 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 3.65 Lacs) that has already been paid by the Bank to the eligible 
depositors, claim for which has been lodged with the RBI and reimbursement of which is expected. This amount is shown 
as receivable under Other Assets-Schedule 13.

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) (AS-20):

    

19. Accounting for Taxes on Income (AS-22):
Disclosures on major components of DTA/DTL are as under:

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year : 5,655.59 6,666.14

-Not later than one year 1,381.32 1,389.88

-Later than one year and not later than five years 3,669.73 4,331.12

-Later than five years 604.54 945.14

Total of minimum lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account for the year. 1,382.36 1,301.17

(R in Lacs)

(R in Lacs)

 Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Opening Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 836.67 647.09

Add : Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 211.84 204.00

Less : Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims* 25.67 14.42

Closing Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 1,022.84 836.67

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Net Profit/(Loss) after income tax 4,025.70 4,852.72

(*) Weighted average number of shares 843.52 840.38

Nominal Value of Shares (Rs.) 10 10

EPS (Rs.) 4.77 5.77

(*) Monthly Weighted average number of shares

Particulars As At During As At

31.03.2018 2018-19 31.03.2019

DTA 

Provision for Advances 2,520.17 (365.24) 2,154.93

Provision for Leave Encashment 405.63 30.63 436.26

TOTAL 2,925.80 (334.61) 2,591.19

DTL 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 432.69 94.18 338.51

Others (Special Reserve U/s 36 (1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961) 769.16   (59.25) 828.41

TOTAL 1,201.85 34.93 1,166.92

NET DTA/(DTL) 1,723.95 (299.68) 1,424.27
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20. Intangible Assets (AS-26) :
Details of Computer Software Expenses (Intangible Asset) disclosed under Schedule 13-Other Assets, are as under:

21. Impairment of Assets (AS-28) :
The Bank has ascertained that there is no material impairment of any of its assets and as such no provision under 
Accounting Standard 28 issued by ICAI is required.

22. Details of financial assets sold during the year to SC/RC for Asset Reconstruction: 

23. There are no material prior period items, except as disclosed elsewhere, included in Profit and Loss account required 
to be disclosed as per Accounting Standard 5 read with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines. Therefore these have 
been charged /accounted for/to their respective head of accounts.

24. The Bank has taken a Group Mediclaim Policy and has paid a premium of Rs. 87.44 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 63.72 Lacs) on this 
account.

25. The Bank has not undertaken any transaction in respect of Interest Rate Future (As per RBI Circular UBD (PCB) BPD 
CIR NO. 17/13.01.000/2009-10 dated October 28, 2009).

26. Bills for Collection being Bill Receivable as per Contra includes cheques sent for clearing on 31.03.2019 to RBI 
amounting Rs. 1,959.01 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 2,980.12 Lacs)

27. In respect of Court litigations against the Bank, there are necessary legal opinions that there will be no adverse orders 
causing any monetary impact. The Bank considers no provisioning necessary in respect of these court litigation.
Bank is contesting Income Tax Cases for / against in appeal at various levels.  
Bank has necessary opinion from Independent Tax Counsels that there will be no Liabilities/Demands to be paid in 
this regard.  Bank also has favorable judgment substantiating their view.  Consequently no provision is considered 
necessary in this regard.
Contingent Liability in respect of Court/Tax cases is disclosed at principal amount claimed excluding interest and 
penalties thereon.
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Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Carrying Amount at the Beginning of the Year 1,384.07 2,118.69

Additions during the Year 108.69 152.34

1,492.76 2,271.03

Amortisation during the Year 798.47 886.96

Carrying Amount at the End of the Year 694.29 1,384.07

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

a. No. of accounts

(No of Borrowers : 54*) 111 N.A.

b. Aggregate value (net of provisions) of
accounts sold to SC/RC 9,637.79 N.A.

c. Aggregate consideration 11,622.80 N.A.

d. Additional consideration realized in respect
of accounts transferred in earlier years N.A. N.A.

e. Aggregate gain  over net book value 1,985.01 N.A.

       * (Includes 27 Retail borrowers (P.Y. NIL))

(R in Lacs)



28. Goods and Service Tax:
stGoods and Services Tax (GST) has been implemented w.e.f. 1  July, 2017. Accordingly, GST collected is accounted 

in ‘GST’ on liabilities side and GST paid to Vendor is accounted in ‘VGST’ on assets side. Out of the ‘VGST’ on assets 
side, eligible Input Tax Credit is availed as set off. In case, eligible Input Tax Credit remains unutilized, the same is 
carried forward and set off subsequently. The Input Tax Credit on expenses which is not allowable to be set off as per 
GST Law, is expensed out.
In case of fixed assets, eligible Input Tax Credit of GST paid to the vendor is utilized against the amount of GST 
collected from the customers and disallowed portion of Input Tax Credit is added back to the value of the asset i.e. the 
same is capitalized.
Income and Expenses on which GST is applicable are accounted for net of GST. 

29. Collection Account of Rs.66.42 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.144.01 Lacs) disclosed in Other Liabilities under Schedule-5 of 
Accounts represents amounts due to shareholders of erstwhile Shri. Shahu Co-op Bank. 
On the date of merger, the initial amount of Rs. 210.21 Lacs was repayable after 10 years as per merger order issued 
by Registrar, Co-operative Societies, Maharashtra State, dt. 23.06.2008. 
Rs. 108.38 Lacs has already been repaid as of date, leaving Rs. 56.42 Lacs to be repaid  Rs. 10.00 Lacs is 
additionally held in this account by the Bank as a matter of prudence for settlements of claims, if any.

Rs. 35.41 Lac is transferred to General Reserve as per clause no.4 (a) of Merger scheme as per the order by 
Commissioner for Co-operation and Registrar, Co - operative Societies, Maharashtra State, Pune.

30. Capital Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts stated net of CWIP executed on capital account as of date aggregate to Rs. 73.00 
Lacs. (P.Y. Rs. 39.93 Lacs)

31. As per RBI circular No. DCBR. BPD (PCB).MC.No. 4/16.20.000/2015-16 dated 01.07.2015, Bank needs to hold a 
minimum 5% of AFS/HFT category of Investment portfolio. During the year, Bank has transferred out of the amounts 
held in excess, an amount of Rs 400.00 Lacs to credit of it’s Profit and Loss Appropriation Account. 
Bank continues to hold IFR in excess of 5% as at 31.03.2019, in compliance with RBI guidelines.

32. Pay order/Drafts outstanding as at 31.03.2019 includes amount of Rs. 752.01 Lacs being issuance towards 
disbursement of Advances.

 
33. During the year Bank sold Assets/Advances amounting to Rs.12,830.69 Lacs of 54 borrowers to Assets 

Reconstruction Companies. This was done as per the Bank’s ARC policy duly approved by the Board and framed in 
accordance with RBI guidelines.

34.  During the year, Bank has purchased Priority Sector Lending Certificate amounting to Rs. 25,000.00 Lacs to meet 
RBI requirements of priority sector lending norms.

35. The Bank has made adequate interest provision of Rs.131.24 Lacs on Matured Term Deposits of Rs. 2,130.26 Lacs  
as on 31.03.2019 as per present Savings Bank rate.

36. The impact to the Profit and Loss Account as a result of change in the rate of depreciation of UPS / Batteries from 15% 
to 33.33% for the current year is Rs. 2.74 Lacs.

37. Previous year figures are re-grouped, re-arranged or modified wherever necessary to conform to the presentation of 
the current year.

   ???? 
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Schedule 17:-
Disclosures as per RBI Guidelines: –  
DCBR.BPD.(PCB). MC.No.10 /09.18.201/2015-16 dated 01.07.2015

*As per ICAI guidelines, Bank conservatively considers Software as an intangible assets & deducts the same from Capital 
funds to arrive at CRAR. Had it not done so, the CRAR would have been 13.03% (P.Y. 12.89%).   

stInvestment of Face Value Rs. 2,000.00 Lacs as on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs. 2,000.00 Lacs) and Market Value Rs. 
st2,032.00 Lacs as on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs. 2,140.00 Lacs) have been lodged with CCIL as Collateral /Settlement 

Guarantee Fund.

stFurther, Investment of Face Value Rs. 5,500.00 Lacs as on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs.5,000.00 Lacs) and Market Value 
stRs.5,095.75 Lacs as on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs.4,983.63 Lacs) have been lodged with CBLO as Collateral/Settlement 

Guarantee Fund.

stInvestment of Face Value Rs. 125.00 Lacs as on 31  March,2019 (P.Y. Rs. 125.00 Lacs) and Market Value Rs. 113.37 Lacs 
stas on 31  March, 2019 ( P.Y. Rs.111.43 Lacs) have been lodged with CCIL as Contribution to Default Fund- USD INR 

Segment.

stInvestment of Face Value Rs. 125.00 Lacs as on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs. 125.00 Lacs) and Market Value Rs. 113.37 Lacs 
stas on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs. 111.43 Lacs) have been lodged with CCIL as Contribution to Default Fund- Forex Forward 

Segment.

stInvestment of Face Value Rs. 16,500.00 Lacs as on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs. 4,142.50 Lacs), Book Value Rs. 15,944.44 
st stLacs as on 31  March, 2019 (P.Y. Rs. 4,047.46 Lacs)  and Market Value Rs. 16,040.00 Lacs as on 31  March, 2019

 (P.Y.  Rs. 4,066.49 Lacs) have been lien marked for Reserve Fund Investment.

49

Sr. No. Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

1. A. Tier-I Ratio 8.24% 7.60%

B.  Tier-II Ratio 4.66% 5.03%

CRAR   12.90% 12.63%

2. Movement of CRAR 

A.Tier-I Capital 38,274.32 35,285.82

B.Tier-II Capital 21,644.23 23,332.81

Capital Funds 59,918.55 58,618.63

C.Risk Weighted Assets 4,64,472.08 4,63,960.10

(R in Lacs)

3. Value of Investments is as under: 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Government/ Approved Securities (Market Value) 1,99,557.38     1,50,978.26 

Bonds of Public Sector Undertakings (Market Value) - -

Other Investments
(Cost Value or Market Value whichever is less) 11904.46 25.08

Shares in Co-operative Institution (Cost Value) 0.14 0.14

TOTAL MARKET VALUE 2,11,493.53     1,51,003.48

TOTAL FACE VALUE 2,10,919.11     1,50,426.23

TOTAL BOOK VALUE 2,08,561.36     1,50,170.22 

(R in Lacs)

4. A. Foreign Currency Liabilities

B. Foreign Currency Assets 805.81        933.25

870.73 933.25

(R in Lacs)

Sr.No. Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018



5. In connection with REPO/Reverse REPO transactions:
(in Face Value terms)

 

6. Disclosure regarding Non-SLR Investments in Bonds as on 31.03.2019.
A. Issuer Composition :-

*includes Shares of National Payment Corporation of India towards membership, ARC and NCDs.
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(  in Lacs)`

 Minimum
outstanding

during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily average
outstanding

during the year

Outstanding
as on

March 31,2019

Securities sold
under REPO 

(i) Government NIL NIL NIL NIL
Securities (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)

(ii) Corporate Debt NIL NIL NIL NIL
Securities     (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)

Securities
purchased under Reverse REPO

(i) Government 100.00 14,000.00 2,904.52 18,500.00
Securities (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)

(ii) Corporate Debt NIL NIL NIL NIL
Securities (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)

Note:- Figures in bracket represent previous year’s figures.

(  in Lacs)`

Amount

Extent of
'Below
Investment
Grade'
securities

Extent of
'Unrated'
Securities

Extent of
'Unlisted'
Securities

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

- - - -

A. PSU's (-) (-) (-) (-)

- - - -

B. FI's (-) (-) (-) (-)

- - - -

C. Nationalised Bank (-) (-) (-) (-)

- - - -

D. Mutual Funds (-) (-) (-) (-)

11,904.60 - 9,904.60 9,904.60

E. Others* (incl. ARC) (35.22) (-) (35.22) (35.22)

Provisions held towards 0.09 - 0.09 -

F. Depreciation (1.60) (-) (1.60) (-)

11,904,69 - 9,904.69 9,904.60

TOTAL (36.82) (-) (36.82) (35.22)

Sr.
No. Issuer

Particulars



B. Non Performing Investments: -NIL (For F.Y. 2018-19 and F.Y. 2017-18). Hence movement not disclosed.

    8. There have been no sanctioned limits to directors and relatives and the company/ firm where they are interested 
(Funded and Non Funded) as at 31.03.2019 (P.Y. – NIL). Advances to directors outstanding as at 31.03.2019 is Nil 
(P.Y. - NIL). Directors and relatives have not given any guarantees for any limits sanctioned by the Bank.

** During the year, the Bank has proposed appropriation subject to approval of AGM of an amount of Rs. 1,200.00 Lacs 
(P.Y. Rs. 1,400.00 Lacs) towards Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund (BDDF) over and above the existing provision made 
towards Bad and Doubtful Debts. The proposed amount in the said fund is netted off against NPAs in arriving at the figure of 
net NPAs. Cumulative BDDF is Rs. 2,177.97 Lacs.
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7. Advances to sensitive sectors 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Against - 

a. Housing* 90,743.90 93,057.64

b. Construction business 
(excluding rent discounting) 5,736.82 7,331.41

c. Real estate ** 15,396.09 15,123.97

d. Against Shares and Debentures 17.08 6.83

*Includes staff housing loans of Rs. 8,461.34 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 7,477.68 Lacs)

** Excludes IPRE (Income Producing Real Estate) of Rs. 8,327.32 Lacs

**Includes Non-Funded CRE Advances of Rs. 365.00 Lacs and
Overdraft against property of Rs. 1,856.42 Lacs

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

9. Average cost of deposits 6.48% 6.50%

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

10. NPAs at the end of the year

a. Gross NPAs 20,079.92 31,716.24

b. Net NPAs ** 8,858.47 18,985.54

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

11. Movements in Gross NPA

Opening Balance – Gross NPAs 31,716.24 24,398.14

Additions during the year * 8,047.13 14,270.73

Less: Recovered /Upgraded/ Written Off/closed 6,852.76 6,952.63

Less: Advances assigned to ARC 12,830.69 -

Closing Balance – Gross NPA 20,079.92 31,716.24

* Does not include amounts of NPAs of Rs. 19,432.36
Lacs added and recovered during the current year.
(P.Y. Rs. 14,110.34 Lacs) 

Net NPA

Gross NPA 20,079.92 31,716.24

Less: Provision/appropriation as at end Mar 2019 11,221.45 12,730.70

Net NPAs 8,858.47 18,985.54
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12. Profitability ** 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

A. Interest income as a percentage of working funds. 8.13% 8.87%

B. Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds. 0.59% 0.49%

C.Operating profit as a percentage of working funds. 1.07% 1.30%

D. Return on Assets (Net Profit /Average of working funds). 0.49% 0.61%

E. Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee (Rs. Lacs). 1,106.92 1,059.34

F. Profit per employee (Rs. Lacs). 3.47 4.19

** Working Fund excludes Contra items in Balance Sheet.

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

13. Provisions made towards NPA during the year debited to 3,137.20 2,890.00
    Profit and Loss Accounts

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

14. Contingent provision made/written back during the year against 13.20 0.30
depreciation in investment 

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

15.  Provisions made towards standard assets during the - 114.00
year debited to Profit and Loss Account

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

16. Movement in provisions  

A. Towards NPAs

i. Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve

Opening Balance 9,705.70 7,982.43

Add: Provision during the year 3,137.20 2,890.00

Total 12,842.90 10,872.43

Less: Write back of provision on account of closure of/recovery in/ (3,799.42) (1,166.73)
write off of NPA/ ARC

Closing Balance 9,043.48 9,705.70

ii. Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund

Opening Balance 3,025.00 1,625.00

Add: Amount proposed to be appropriated from profits after tax 1,200.00 1,400.00

Less: Write back of provision on account of sale of assets to ARC (2047.03) -

Closing Balance 2,177.97 3,025.00

B. Towards Standard Assets 

Opening Balance 2,189.00 2,075.00

Add: Additions during the year - 114.00

Less: Written back during the year - -

Closing Balance 2,189.00 2,189.00



19. Disclosure in respect of Restructured Accounts as per RBI master circular no. RBI/2009-
10/93UBD. PCB.MC.No. 3 / 09.14.000 / 2009-10 July 1, 2009 (Annexure - VIII)

Restructured Accounts during F.Y. 2018-19

Housing Loans SME Debt 
Restructuring  Others

Standard No of Borrowers - - 1

Advances Amount Outstanding 31.65

Restructured Sacrifice - - 1.36

Substandard No of Borrowers - - -

Accounts Amount Outstanding - - -

Restructured Sacrifice - - -

Doubtful No of Borrowers - - -

Accounts Amount Outstanding - - -

Restructured Sacrifice - - -

Total No of Borrowers - - 1

Amount Outstanding - - 31.65

Sacrifice - - 1.36

Note: There are no accounts pending for restructuring where applications have been received and not approved.
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(R in Lacs)

17. Movements in Contingent provisions against depreciation in investment 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Opening Balance 1.60 1.30

Add: Provision made during the year 13.20 0.30

Less: Excess provision reversed - -

Closing Balance 14.80 1.60

(R in Lacs)

18. Movements in Investment Fluctuation Reserve 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Opening Balance 1,525.54 1,525.54

Additions during the year 107 -

Less: Excess written back 400 -

Closing Balance 1,232.54 1,525.54

(R in Lacs)



20. DICGC Insurance Premium paid for the current financial year is Rs. 819.72 Lacs  (P.Y. Rs. 762.24 Lacs). 

21.  No penalty or fine has been charged by the RBI for the current financial year. 

22. There has been no default on CRR & SLR stipulated requirement by the Bank during the year.  

23. Capital Charge on Market Risk :

Market Risk in Trading book - Standardized Modified Duration Approach:

Qualitative Disclosures:-
The general qualitative disclosure requirement for market risk:-

Strategies and Processes:
Investment Policy which includes Market Risk Management is in line with the RBI regulations vide circular 
UBD.BPD.(PCB). Cir. No. 42/09.11.600/2009-10 dated February 8, 2010 and business requirements. 
The overall objective of market risk management is to enhance profitability by improving the Bank's competitive 
advantage and mitigate loss from all types of market risk loss events.

Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting / Measurement Systems:
The Bank has regulatory / internal limits for various Instruments in place. 
Various exposure limits for market risk management such as Overnight Limit, Aggregate Gap Limit and Investment 
Limit etc. are in place.
The portfolio covered by Standardized Modified Duration Approach for computation of Capital Charge for Market 
Risk includes investment portfolio held under AFS and Forex Open positions.

Quantitative Disclosures:

24. Information under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)
The information from suppliers/service providers regarding their registration under MSMED Act, 2006 is not fully 
received by the Bank. Therefore, information relating to cases of delays if any, in payment to such enterprises or of 
interest payments due to such delays is not given.

25. There is no breach in Single Borrower / Group Borrower limit.

????
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Particulars                                                                                                         Amount of Capital Required

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

• Interest rate risk 739.06 0.00

• Equity position risk 5.11 5.11

• Foreign exchange risk 56.88 52.74

(R in Lacs)
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ITEMS AS ON MARCH 31, 2019

No. of Branches (including Head Office) 110

Membership

No of Regular Members 55,071

No of Nominal Members 10,996

Paid up Share Capital ` 98.17

Total Reserves and Funds ` 775.94

Deposits :

Current ` 356.43

Savings ` 1,400.00

Term ` 5,844.45

Total ` 7,600.88

Advances:

Secured ` 5,205.54

Unsecured ` 44.98

Total ` 5,250.52

Total % of Priority Sector 42.03%

Total % of Weaker Section 7.82%

Overdues ` 317.90

Overdue Percentage 6.05%

Borrowings ` 159.70

Investments ` 2570.53

Audit Classification A

Profit for the year ` 40.26

Working Capital ` 8633.90

Total Staff 1161

(` in Cr.)

ANNEXURE 'I'

NAME OF BANK : NKGSB CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD.

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS : 'LAXMI SADAN', 361, V. P. ROAD, GIRGAUM,
MUMBAI 400 004.

DATE OF REGISTRATION : SEPTEMBER 26, 1917

NO. & DATE OF RBI LICENSE : UBD MH 493 P, DT. JULY 26, 1986

AREA OF OPERATION : STATES OF MAHARASHTRA, KARNATAKA, GUJARAT, 
GOA, MADHYA PRADESH AND UNION TERRITORY OF 
DAMAN, DIU, DADRA & NAGAR HAVELI.
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                           No.  of  shares  held                                                   No.  of  Members                                    %

50-100 22,709  41.24 

101-500 15,744  28.59 

501-5000 13,347  24.23 

5001 and Above 3,271  5.94 

Total 55,071 100.00

TABLE NO. 1

Distribution of Shareholders as on March 31, 2019

TABLE NO. 3

Distribution of Advances as on March 31, 2019

(` in Cr.)

                         Amount                                         No of Accounts                  Amount of Deposits                        %

Upto Rs. 10,000 3,01,334 64.08 0.84

Rs. 10,001 to Rs. 50,000  1,79,556 509.74 6.71

Rs. 50,001 to Rs. 1,00,000  1,10,046 833.48 10.97

Rs. 1,00,001 to Rs. 2,00,000  74,299 1,045.26 13.75

Rs. 2,00,001 to Rs. 10,00,000  58,668 2,428.36 31.95

Rs. 10,00,001 and Above  8,211 2,719.96 35.78 

Total  7,32,114 7,600.88 100.00

TABLE NO. 2

Distribution of Deposit Accounts  as on March 31, 2019

(` in Cr.)

                         Amount                                         No of Accounts                      Balance O/S                                 %

Upto Rs. 25,000  853 0.71 0.01

Rs. 25,001 to Rs. 1,00,000 1,908 11.49 0.22

Rs. 1,00,001 to Rs. 2,00,000 1,629 23.98 0.46

Rs. 2,00,001 to Rs. 10,00,000 6,338 331.64 6.32

Rs. 10,00,001 to Rs. 25,00,000 4,532 742.33 14.14

Rs. 25,00,001 to Rs. 50,00,000 2,127 739.34 14.08

Rs. 50,00,001 and Above 1,832 3,401.03 64.77

Total  19,219 5,250.52 100.00
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75,577 INCOME 82,646 79,081 5 90,172 14

EXPENDITURE

46,573 Interest Paid 52,060 48,747 5 56,391 16

7,941 Establishment 8,400 8,143 3 8,500 4

10,703 Others 10,571 12,938 21 13,774 6

2,416 Provision for Taxes 2,800 1,978 (18) 2,200 11

3,091 Provisions 2,728 3,249 5 3,307 2

4,853 Net Profit 6,087 4,026 (17) 6,000 49

75,577 TOTAL 82,646 79,081 5 90,172 14

LIABILITIES

9,760 Share Capital 11,760 9,817 1 10,941 11

66,151 Reserves 72,775 67,777 2 70,618 4

1 Net Distributable Surplus 1 - - 1 -

75,912 84,536 77,594 2 81,560 5

6,94,531 Deposits 8,20,000 7,60,088 9 9,50,000 25

15,970 Borrowings 15,970 15,970 - 17,500 10

8,437 Sundries 8,004 9,738 15 9,940 2

7,94,850 9,28,510 8,63,390 9 10,59,000 23

ASSETS

2,21,170 Liquid Assets 2,84,333 2,95,702 34 3,63,930 23

5,31,129 Advances 6,00,000 5,25,052 (1) 6,50,000 24

28,519 Fixed Assets 29,677 27,301 (4) 28,200 3

14,032 Sundries 14,500 15,335 9 16,870 10

7,94,850 9,28,510 8,63,390 9 10,59,000 23

ACTUAL
2018

ACTUAL
2018

PERFORMANCE AND BUDGET ESTIMATE 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

BUDGET
2019

BUDGET
2019

ACTUAL
2019

ACTUAL
2019

% INCREASE/
DECREASE
OVER 2018

% INCREASE/
DECREASE
OVER 2018

BUDGET
2020

BUDGET
2020

(` in Lacs)
A]

B]

% INCREASE/
DECREASE

OVER ACTUAL 2019

% INCREASE/
DECREASE

OVER ACTUAL 2019
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